
  
 
 
 

 
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION AGENDA 
Monday, June 24, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

Caledonia Village Hall – 5043 Chester Lane 
 

1. Meeting Called to Order 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
A. Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2024 
 

4. Public Comment: Provides citizens a two-minute opportunity to voice their opinions to the Plan Commission.  
The Plan Commission is unable to respond as any discussion may conflict with open meeting requirements. 
cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc 

5. Public Hearing and Possible Action on Items set for Public Hearing 
A. LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW – Consider an amendment to the Village’s Land Use Plan Map 

as part of the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for Racine County: 2035 for the parcel located at 6040 
Douglas Avenue changing the land use category from Governmental & Institutional to Commercial to 
accommodate the rezoning of parcel for future business development submitted by Village of Caledonia, 
Applicant & Owner. (Parcel ID No. 104-04-23-18-300-230)  
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/0TFBP4WEPV  
 

B. REZONE REVIEW – Review a request to rezone a ±1.23-acre parcel located at 6040 Douglas Avenue from 
M-1, Light Manufacturing District to B-2, Community Business District for the future commercial 
redevelopment of the old Caledonia Fire Station No. 12 submitted by Village of Caledonia, Applicant & 
Owner. (Parcel ID No. 104-04-23-18-300-230)  
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/XOWAO856EN  
 

C. REZONE REVIEW – Review a request to rezone a ±3.05-acre parcel located at 7930 Hagemann Road from 
A-2, Agricultural District to B-3, Highway Business District for the future commercial development submitted 
by Greg Thompson, Applicant and Owner. (Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-07-053-000)  
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/QRVJA5AWQ8  
 

D. CONDITIONAL USE AMENDMENT AND BUILDING, SITE, AND OPERATION PLAN REVIEW – 
Review a request for a conditional use amendment for the parcel located on USH 41, directly south of 6009 
USH 41, allowing the applicant an additional twelve months to begin construction of a commercial building to 
operate a commercial trailer sales and service business with outdoor display and storage of merchandise and 
approve the associated building, site, and operation plan submitted by Luke Sebald, Applicant, Caledonia 
Trailers LLC, Owner. (Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-19-037-000) 
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/GWOKGYXQ37  

  
6. New Business 

A. CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP - Review a proposed certified survey map creating two lots for the parcel located 
along 7 Mile Road submitted by Ken Rusch, Applicant, Paul Thomas & Hasan Salem, Owners. (Parcel ID No. 
104-04-22-08-005-000) More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/49P05RU0LE  
 

B. CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP – Review modifications to the conditions of approval for the certified survey 
map combining four parcels into one parcel located at 3301 USH 41, 3047 USH 41, and two parcels east of 
3047 USH 41 submitted by Ashely Ventures LLC, Applicant, Hintz Real Estate Development Company, 
Owner (Parcel ID Nos. 104-04-22-31-022-000, 104-04-22-31-023-000, 104-04-22-31-024-000 & 104-04-22-
31-008-000). More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/0CF2AH2EFV  

https://s.zoninghub.com/0TFBP4WEPV
https://s.zoninghub.com/XOWAO856EN
https://s.zoninghub.com/QRVJA5AWQ8
https://s.zoninghub.com/GWOKGYXQ37
https://s.zoninghub.com/49P05RU0LE
https://s.zoninghub.com/0CF2AH2EFV


PC 6/24/24 
Page 2 

 
C. COOPERATIVE BOUNDARY AGREEMENT REVIEW – Review a building, site, and operation plan for 

construction of a ±4,875 square-foot addition to an existing commercial building located at 3039 27th Street, 
Village of Raymond, submitted by Sukhi Singh, Applicant, Musafar Group LLC, Owner. (Parcel ID No. 
168-04-21-12-038-400) More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/HJA31ZH2S5  
 

D. COOPERATIVE BOUNDARY AGREEMENT REVIEW – Review a request to rezone a 10.25-acre parcel 
from B-3, Commercial Service District and M-3, Heavy Industrial District to B-5, Highway Business 
District; a request for a conditional use to expand a parking lot and operation of a logistics business; and 
review a site plan of the expanded parking lot and two ±4,920 square-foot commercial buildings for the 
property located at 405 27th Street, Village of Raymond, submitted by Predrag Maric, Applicant, Maric 
Investments LLC, Owner. (Parcel ID No. 168-04-21-01-005-000)  
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/LJ0ZEF1GQY  
 

E. COOPERATIVE BOUNDARY AGREEMENT REVIEW – Review a 172-square-foot wall sign for the 
commercial building located at 195 27th Street, Village of Raymond, submitted by August Hoppe, Applicant,  
More information at Caledonia ZoningHub: https://s.zoninghub.com/HJA31ZH2S5  
  
 

7. Adjournment  
   
 Dated June 21, 2024      Jennifer Olsen 
        Caledonia Village Clerk 
 
Only Commission members are expected to attend.  However, attendance by all Board members (including non-members of the Plan 
Commission) is permitted.  If additional (non-commission) Board members attend, three or more Board members may be in attendance.  
Section 19.82(2), Wisconsin Statutes, states as follows: If one-half or more of the members of a governmental body are present, the meeting is 
rebuttably presumed to be for the purposes of exercising the responsibilities, authority, power or duties delegated to or vested in the body. To 
the extent that three or more members of the Caledonia Village Board actually attend, this meeting may be rebuttably presumed to be a 
“meeting” within the meaning of Wisconsin’s open meeting law. Nevertheless, only the commission’s agenda will be discussed.  Only 
commission members will vote.  Board members who attend the commission meeting do so for the purpose of gathering information and 
possible discussion regarding the agenda.  No votes or other action will be taken by the Village Board at this meeting. 

https://s.zoninghub.com/HJA31ZH2S5
https://s.zoninghub.com/LJ0ZEF1GQY
https://s.zoninghub.com/HJA31ZH2S5


 Planning Commission Meeting 
Monday, May 20, 2024 

 

1 
 
 

 
 
 
1. Meeting called to order 

President Weatherston called the meeting to order at 6:14 pm at the Village Hall, 5043 Chester 
Lane Caledonia, WI.  

 
2. Roll Call/Introductions 

  
PRESENT:  5 – President Tom Weatherston, Joe Kiriaki, Trustee Nancy Pierce, Ami May and 

Michael Moore 
 

EXCUSED:  1 – Ron Bocciardi 
  

 
STAFF:  Development Director Peter Wagner, Zoning Administrator/ Planner Todd Roehl, and 

Village Clerk Jennifer Olsen 
 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Motion by Pierce to approve the minutes from April 29, 2024. Seconded by Moore. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
4. Public Comment 

The following people appeared to speak before the commission: 
- Kate Flynn, Nature Dr. – Concerns over the cell tower proposed in Item 5A Public Hearing. 

 
5. Public Hearing and Possible Action on Items set for Public Hearing 

 
A. CONDITIONAL USE AND BUILDING, SITE, AND OPERATION PLAN REVIEW – 

Review a request for a conditional use and approval of a building, site, and operation plan 
to allow the construction and utilization of a 160-foot telecommunication pole within a 
±5,120 square-foot fenced compound with mechanical equipment located at 3426 Stephan 
Road submitted by Diamond Communications LLC, Applicant, Curtis Studey, Owner. 
(Parcel ID No. 104-04-23-18-006-000)   

 
Staff presented on the item, summarizing material provided in the packet.  
 
Public Hearing opened at 6:24 PM 
President Weatherston asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in favor of this proposal. 
 
In Favor:  
None  
 
President Weatherston asked three times if anyone wanted to speak against this proposal. 
Against: 

1. Sue Howbel-Keller, 6352 Nature Dr.  – Stated concerns about the residential location of 
the tower, road access during construction, and the possibility of more towers in the 
future. 

2. Stacey Schmierer, 3206 Pleasant View Cir. – Stated concerns about the look of the tower, 
effects on property values, and possible health effects. 



 Planning Commission Meeting 
Monday, May 20, 2024 

 

2 
 
 

3. Randy Visser, 6358 Nature Dr. – Stated concerns about the look of the tower and 
possible health effects 

4. Greg Miller, 6627 Bobolink Rd. – Stated concerns about the look of the tower and 
decreased property values 

5. Chris Nitka, 6744 Westlake Dr. – Stated concern about the decreased property values 
6. Tim Johnson, 6918 Bay wood Dr. – Stated concern over decreased value of property due 

to the tower 
7. Jeff Smith, 6764 Bay Wood Dr. – Mentioned other locations that he feels would be better 

suited for the tower 
8. Nick Gasau, 6639 Bobolink Rd. – Asked why we are rezoning such a large area instead 

of only the tower area, concerns of further development. 
 
Public Hearing closed at 6:37 PM 
 
The applicant responded to various questions stated as part of the public hearing. The following 
were responses from the applicant:. 
 
 This property is not being rezoned. 
 Construction would take approximately 45-60 days, during which disruption would be 

minimal and non-continuous.  
 In the opinion of the applicant familiar with real estate marketing, property values 

historically are not negatively effected by proximity to a telecommunications tower. 
 As the applicant is leasing the land from a private owner, not the village, there will be no 

village revenue from the project. 
 The applicant stated it is likely other nearby sites were considered, but property owners 

were not interested. In addition, WE Energies no longer leases their towers for 
telecommunications equipment. 
 

Staff and the Commission also clarified that this body is limited in its decision-making ability in 
regard to the conditional use application. If the applicant meets the Village’s regulations and 
requirements, state laws prohibit them from denying a recommendation to the Village Board. 

 
Motion by Pierce to recommend that Village Board approves a conditional use for the 
construction and use of a 160-foot monopole (plus two-foot lightning rod) mobile service support 
structure and a ±5,120 square foot compound for the property located at 3624 Stephan Road be 
approved with conditions in Exhibit A for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed use is allowed by underlying zoning through the conditional use review 
process. 

2. The proposed use will not adversely affect the surrounding properties. 
Seconded by Kiriaki.  
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Motion by Pierce to recommend that the Village Board approves a building, site, and operation 
plan for the construction of a 160-foot monopole (plus two-foot lightning rod) mobile service 
support structure and a ±5,120 square foot equipment compound for the property located at 3624 
Stephan Road be approved for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed use is allowed by underlying zoning through the conditional use review 
process. 

2. The proposed use will not adversely affect the surrounding properties. 
Seconded by Moore.  



 Planning Commission Meeting 
Monday, May 20, 2024 

 

3 
 
 

Motion carried, 5-0. 
 
6. New Business 
 

A. CONDITIONAL USE EXTENSION AND NONMETALLIC MINING PERMIT RENEWAL 
REVIEW – Review a request for the renewal of the nonmetallic mining permit and conditional 
use permit allowing for the continued operation of an existing limestone quarry including 
earthmoving, blasting, crushing, sorting and sizing, stockpiling, transportation and 
reclamation, as well as those activities permitted in the Village’s ordinances entitled 
“Regulation of Nonmetallic Mining” (Title 7, Chapter 11) and “Explosives and Blasting” (Title 
7, Chapter 10).  Applicants are subject to Title 16, Chapter 6, M-4 Quarrying District as 
applicable to the Village of Caledonia. Payne and Dolan Inc., Owner and Applicant. (Parcel ID 
Nos. 104-04-23-28-075-000, 104-04-23-28-074-000, 104-04-23-29-193-000, & 104-04-23-28-071-
000) 
 
Motion by Pierce recommend to the Village Board that the nonmetallic mining permit be 
renewed and that the conditional use permit allowing the continuing use of the area as a quarry 
that includes earthmoving, blasting, crushing, sorting, sizing, stockpiling, transportation, and 
reclamation, as wells as those activities permitted in the Village’s ordinance entitled “Regulation 
of Nonmetallic Mining” and “Explosives and Blasting” be extended for two years subject to the 
conditions attached hereto as Exhibit A for the quarry located at 1501 3 Mile Road be approved 
for the following reasons: 
1. The applicant agrees to meet all the requirements and conditions to be imposed by the 

Village; and  
2. For the same reasons set forth in Plan Commission Resolution Nos. 2018-75, 2018-78, 2020-

62, and 2022-66. 
Seconded by May.  
Motion carried 5-0.  
 

B. CONSULTATION – Presentation of a concept commercial development for the property 
located at 7930 Hageman Road submitted and presented by Greg Thompson. (Parcel ID No. 
104-04-22-07-053-000) 
 
Greg Thompson presented a business concept for commercial development to determine if this is 
an acceptable plan under the Village’s current rules and regulations. Mr. Thompson stated this 
concept is not standard self-storage units, but rather “small business incubators.” These duplex 
units will be individually owned and used for light commercial purposes. This plan would require 
a zone change to B3. The Commission expressed enthusiasm for the concept. 

 
3. Adjournment 

   
Meeting adjourned at 7:29PM  
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
Jennifer Olsen 
Village Clerk 



 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024     

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 5a & 5b  

Proposal: Land Use Amendment & Rezone  

Description: Consider an amendment to the Village’s Land Use Plan Map as part of the Multi-
Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for Racine County: 2035 for the parcel located at 
6040 Douglas Avenue changing the land use category from Governmental & 
Institutional to Commercial to accommodate the rezoning to B-2, Community 
Business District for future business development. 
 

Applicant(s): Village of Caledonia 

Address(es): 6040 Douglas Avenue 

Suggested 
Motions: 

LAND USE AMENDMENT 
That the Plan Commission adopts Resolution 2024-03 which recommends to the 
Village Board an amendment to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map to change land use 
category from Governmental and Institutional to Commercial for the property located 
at 6040 Douglas Avenue (Parcel ID No. 104-04-23-18-300-230), for the following 
reasons: 

1. This land use amendment is compatible with the land use classifications of 
abutting properties. 

2. This Land Use Plan amendment will lay the foundation for rezoning of the 
subject property to the B-2, Community Business District for the future 
redevelopment of the former Caledonia Fire Station No. 12. 
 

REZONE  
That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that the property located 
at 6040 Dougals Avenue (Parcel ID No. 104-04-23-18-300-230) be rezoned from M-
1, Light Manufacturing District, to B-2, Community Business District for the following 
reasons: 

1. Due to the subject property’s proximity to STH 32 and nearby commercial 
uses, commercial uses should be encouraged in this area. 

2. The 2035 Land Use Plan designates this property as Commercial. The 
proposed rezoning is in accord with the 2035 Land Use Plan designation for 
the subject property. 

 

Owner(s): Village of Caledonia 

Tax Key(s): 104-04-23-18-300-230 

Lot Size(s): 1.23 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):      M-1, Light Manufacturing District  

 
 

   



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5a & 5b 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Overlay 
District(s): 

  
None 

  
  

  
  

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Governmental & Institutional  

 
Background:  
  
LAND USE AMENDMENT 
The applicant is requesting a Land Use Amendment and subsequentially a Rezone for the future 
commercial redevelopment of the old Village Fire Station No. 12 located on 6040 Dougals Avenue, 
comprising approximately 1.2 acres.  
 
Currently, the parcel has a fire station building that has 
been vacated since May 2024 as the result of the new 
Fire Station No. 12 that has been constructed on 
Chester Lane. Earlier this year, the Village Board 
determined that the municipality no longer needed the 
building for government purposes and that the site 
should be sold, and that a commercial use would be 
the best suited use for the property.  
 
The existing uses abutting the proposed parcel are 
residential to the west and south, and light 
manufacturing and commercial to the north along with 
commercial uses to the east, and southeast. The 
proposed land use category, Commercial, is 
compatible with these types of land uses. Should the 
Land Use Amendment be approved, future 
commercial uses will require a buffer such as landscaping or fencing, to reduce impacts a development 
may cause to abutting residential areas. 
 
The current land use category for the parcel is Governmental & Institutional. This land use category 
prohibits the rezoning of the property for commercial purposes as the State of Wisconsin Smart Growth 
Law requires that all local land use decisions after January 1, 2010, must be consistent with the goals, 
objectives, and policies contained within the Land Use Plan. Changing the land use category to 
Commercial on the Land Use Plan Map would allow for the property to be rezoned to B-2, Community 
Business District. 
 
The Village Board also agreed that there should be a deed restriction placed on the property prohibiting 
specific uses. Included in your packet is a copy of the deed restriction stating what uses are prohibited. 
This restriction can only be modified if both the landowner and Village agree to modify the document. 
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed land use amendment from Governmental & 
Institutional to Commercial, there is a suggested motion to adopt a resolution approving the land use 
amendment.  
 

Land Use Change from Governmental & 
Institutional to Commercial land use category 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5a & 5b 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
REZONE 
The applicant is requesting a change in zoning for the parcel located at 6040 Douglas Avenue from M-1, 
Light Manufacturing District, to B-2, Community Business District. The intent of the B-2 District is to 
accommodate the future reuse of the existing fire station building on the property for commercial purposes.  
 
The abutting parcel to the west is zoned R-3 
Single-Family Residential District, a parcel to the 
south is zoned R-7, Multi-Family Residential 
District, a parcel to the southeast is zoned B-1, 
Neighborhood Business District, parcels to the 
east are zoned B-2, Community Business District, 
and parcels to the north are zoned B-3, Highway 
Business District and M-1, Light Manufacturing 
District.  
 
Based on the location of the property along a STH 
32 and neighboring business uses, staff believes 
the rezoning of the property to the B-2 District is a 
suitable district. For the Plan Commission to 
consider this Rezone request, the Plan 
Commission will need to have recommended 
approval of the Land Use Amendment for the 
parcels from Governmental and Institutional to 
Commercial. If the land use amendment is not 
approved, the proposed rezone request would not be consistent with the Village’s land use map and be 
in violation of Wisconsin’s Smart Growth Law. 
 
If the Plan Commission feels the proposed rezoning from M-1 to B-2 is appropriate, staff drafted a 
suggested motion to recommend approval of the rezone request to allow for the future reuse of the fire 
station for commercial purposes at 6040 Douglas Avenue. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Peter Wagner, AICP 
Development Director 

 
 
 

 
 

Rezone parcel from M-1, Light Manufacturing District to 
B-2, Community Business District. 





 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. PC2024-03 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN FOR RACINE COUNTY CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATIONS  

FROM “GOVERNMENTAL AND INSTITUTIONAL” TO “COMMERCIAL” AS IT 
PERTAINS TO THE PARCEL LOCATED AT 6040 DOUGLAS AVENUE IN THE 

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA, RACINE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 
 
 The Plan Commission for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin resolves as 

follows: 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board adopted “A Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan for 

Racine County, 2035” as the Village Comprehensive Plan on June 22, 2009 (the “Comprehensive 

Plan”) and has amended the Comprehensive Plan from time-to-time; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Caledonia has proposed an amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan to change the land use designation of the parcel located at 6040 Douglas Avenue (Parcel No. 

104-04-23-18-300-230) from governmental and institutional to commercial on the Village land 

use plan map adopted by the Village Board as part of the Comprehensive Plan, as depicted on the 

attached Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has duly noticed a public hearing on the aforementioned 

amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and the Plan Commission held a public hearing on June 

24, 2024, regarding the plan amendment following the procedures set forth in Section 

66.1001(4)(d) of the Wisconsin Statutes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission finds that the Comprehensive Plan, with the proposed 

amendment, contains all of the required elements specified in Section 66.1001(2) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes and that the Comprehensive Plan, with the proposed amendment, is internally consistent 

and is in the public’s best interest. 



 

2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 66.1001(4)(b) of the 

Wisconsin Statutes, the Village of Caledonia Plan Commission hereby recommends approval of 

the proposed amendment and further recommends adoption of an ordinance by the Village Board 

amending the Comprehensive Plan as it pertains to the Village of Caledonia land use plan map. 

Adopted this _____ day of June, 2024. 

 
Ayes ____ Noes ____ Absent  ____ 
 
 
 
     VILLAGE OF CALEONDIA PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
     By:        
      Thomas Weatherston 
      Plan Commission President 
 
 
 
     Attest:        
      Joe Kiriaki 
      Plan Commission Vice-President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

3 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

Subject Property 

















 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024     

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 5c  

Proposal: Rezone  

Description: Request to rezone ±3.05-acre parcel be rezoned from A-2, Agricultural District to B-
3, Highway Business District for future commercial development. 
 

Applicant(s): Greg Thompson 

Address(es): 7930 Hagemann Road 

Suggested 
Motion: 

That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that the ±3.05-acre 
parcel located at 7930 Hagemann Road be rezoned from A-2, Agricultural District to 
B-3, Highway Business District for the future commercial development, Parcel ID No. 
104-04-22-07-053-000, as illustrated in Exhibit A for the following reasons: 

1. Due to the subject property’s proximity to I-94, commercial uses should be 
encouraged in this area. 

2. The 2035 Land Use Plan designates this area of the property as Commercial. 
The proposed rezoning is in accord with the 2035 Land Use Plan designation 
for the subject property. 
 

Owner(s): Greg Thompson (Under contract from Wagner Trust – Cuccio Trust James, Richard 
and Loetta) 

Tax Key(s): 104-04-22-07-053-000 

Lot Size(s): 3.05 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):  A-2 Agricultural District 

 
  

    

Overlay District(s): N/A 
  

  
  

  
  

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Commercial 

  



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5c 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Background:  The applicant is requesting a change in zoning for the parcel located at 7930 Hagemann 
Road from A-2, Agricultural District to B-3, Highway Business District to accommodate the future 
commercial development of a condominium business park.  
 
The Village Land Use Plan shows this parcel and surrounding parcels identified as future commercial use. 
Surrounding parcels to the east, north, and south are being used for residential purposes and the west for 
commercial uses. The request to rezone the parcel to a business district would be consistent with the land 
use plan. The proximity of the parcel to the interstate makes the change in zoning to business a suitable 
use.  
 
If approved, the applicant will come back before the Village with a building, site, and operation plan 
requesting a review and approval of the proposed commercial use. The applicant is proposing to build 
multiple two-tenant commercia buildings that will be of a smaller scale and designed to imitate residential 
building design. Included in this packet is information explaining how the commercial buildings will be 
typically utilized and how the buildings will be designed.  
 
Staff believes the requested rezoning of the parcel to the B-3, Highway Business District is suitable since 
the business zoning district is consistent with the adopted 2035 Village Land Use Plan and the close 
proximity of the parcel to the highway. 
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed rezone, staff has drafted a suggested motion 
shown on the first page of this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Peter Wagner, AICP 
Development Director 

 
 
 

 
 
  



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5c 

Page 3 of 3 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF THE FRACTIONAL NORTHWEST ¼ OF 
SECTION 7, TOWN 4 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA, COUNTY OF RACINE, 
STATE OF WISCONSIN, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE NORTH 89º16'00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1002.80 FEET, ALONG 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID ¼ SECTION, TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00°05'40" EAST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 69.05 FEET, TO A THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF HAGEMAN 
ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 00"05'40'' EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 410.70 FEET, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, TO 
A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89º24'00" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 399.93 FEET, TO A POINT ON TIIE EAST 
LINE OF THE EAST FRONTAGE ROAD; THENCE NORTH 11º38'58" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 106.82 
FEET, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 00º35'34" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 174.71 
FEET, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 89º16'00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 194.56 
FEET, TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 01º09'53" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 139.97 FEET, TO A POINT; 
THENCE NORTH 89°15'58" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 180.67 FEET, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SEVEN MILE ROAD, TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 37º45'49" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 11.62 FEET, 
CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS 3.05447 ACRES. 





Preliminary Development Plan 
for 

� 

S:torage&h,opUSA™

7930 Hagemann Rd, 
Caledonia, WI 53108



Zoning: A-2 - Agricultural 

2



2035 Future Use: Commercial 

2023 Amendment to Village’s Future Land Use Plan: “Follow the detailed 
land use and zoning implementation strategies recommended in the I-94 
Corridor Study adopted by the Village in 2018.”

I-94 Study: "allow future commercial uses to continue to be allowed along
the East Frontage Road" and "allow 7 Mile Road to house future commercial
uses."

3



The StorageShopUSA™-Caledonia development is located at 7930 Hagemann Rd
which is currently zoned A-2 Agricultural, future use commercial. StorageShopUSA™
proposes a rezone to the B-3 Highway Business District for the construction of 22
units of office/workshop condominiums for business and personal use. The
office/workshop units will fulfill the intent of the B-3 zoning:

SEC. 16-6-12 (a)
STATEMENT OF INTENT: This district is intended to provide for the orderly
and attractive grouping at appropriate locations of commercial activities of a
more general retail and wholesale nature, and of the office and service
facilities serving a larger community trade area. The size and location of such
districts shall be based upon relationship of the community need and economy.

The following use descriptions are consistent with the above statement of intent:

Office & workshop space for trade and contracting services.
Commercial contractors such as electricians, plumbers, and other types of
trades and service businesses which require a small office and some workshop
space. These types of businesses generate little traffic with low intensity and
can be identified as requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no drop-off/pick-up, no
retail, and no more than one employee.

Personal workshop and storage - activities consistent with what a typical
homeowner uses their garage for, but bigger.
Personal workshop and storage space for crafters, antiquers, and alike. These
types of uses generate little traffic with low intensity and can be identified as
requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no drop-off/pick-up, no retail, and no more
than one employee.

Other business uses that are not specifically permitted or prohibited that are
deemed to be of a character compatible with a use listed above.
Other similar uses such as a home-based business, that generate little traffic
with low intensity and can be identified as requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no
drop-off/pick-up, no retail, and no more than one employee.

Each StorageShopUSA™ development uses the same copyrighted building design and
formulates a distinct solution to needed commercial/industrial space. The
developments have been very successful with 27 locations in Wisconsin and over 350
units sold.

A listing of the uses from a recent StorageShopUSA™ -Waukesha development is as
follows:

2- electrical contractor
1- plumbing contractor
2- security systems contractor



1-“coffee cart” operator
1- sets up trade shows
1- remodeling contractor
8- workshops
6- business storage

Businesses from other StorageShopUSA™ locations include:

Carpet cleaner
Salvation Army office/shop
Computer networking
Inflatables for kids’ parties
Property manager workshop
Matco tools distributor
Commercial artist
Antiques collector/trader (no retail)
Online marketing /advertising studio-shop
Cleaning business
Internet/online wholesaler

The StorageShopUSA™ developments do not allow auto repair, welding, for
commercial purposes, nor any retail. There is no outside parking overnight and no
outside storage allowed. Excerpts from the condominium rules and declaration are
attached.

StorageShopUSA™ developments are NOT “mini-storage” Instead, they provide
alternative “storage” ownership primarily for businesses. And, they are NOT “personal
storage facilities” seeing they are commercially zoned, follow all commercial building
codes, provide ADA accessibility, and are used to legally operate a business unlike
storage facilities.

We are requesting approval of the attached StorageShopUSA™ Permitted Uses
document.

Project Characteristics

The proposed development will include eleven (11) duplex buildings for a total of
twenty-two (22) 1,250sf condominium units. The density amounts to an impervious
surface ratio of 46% with a disturbance area of ~1.6 acres. Around half the lot will be
green space.

The development is accessed off East Frontage Rd in the I-94 corridor. Parking is
limited to 2 spaces/units. The 22 unit site will generate approximately 79 trips/day
based on a traffic study from another StorageShopUSA™ location with 24 units done
in 2020 (see attached).



The property will be served by well and septic. Waukesha, Dane, and Ozaukee
counties have approved septic systems for StorageShopUSA™ developments. Water
usage data collected from 140 units over a one-year timeframe provides the basis for
the design of the system. The typical sewer and water infrastructure has been approved
by the Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) 23 times in the last 19
years.

The units will be priced at approximately $150,000 based on previous sales data. The
development should increase the Village of Caledonia’s tax base by over $3,300,000.

Site Plan Approval

The proposed StorageShopUSA™ development will be a catalyst to encourage other
businesses and developments to locate off 7 Mile Rd in the I-94 corridor. The
StorageShopUSA™ community is recognized across the state and would be in
harmony with the Village of Caledonia I-94 Corridor Land Use Plan.

StorageShopUSA™ is a condominium community of like-minded owners of small
businesses and workshops they own- not rent.

The developments are uniform and when grouped together, create a unique look and
feel people like.

The materials are wood and brick as required and the buildings get rave reviews of
how nice the buildings/development look when completed.

There is no outdoor storage allowed and no parking outside overnight.

The dumpster will be screened (see attached).

There are no protrusions that need to be screened. Occasionally, an exhaust fan or an
air conditioner is installed.

Signs are allowed in the front window only for each unit. There is one monument sign
with the property address and the StorageShopUSA™ name (see attached).

There are no proposed uses that would have a negative impact on the safe and
healthful conditions of the Village.

There is no historical interest.

There are no wetlands or conservation areas to be concerned with.



Performance Standards

There is no reason to believe that any of the small businesses and owners attracted to
this development would create any issue with air pollution, fire hazards, glare or heat,
liquid or solid waste, noise, odor, or radioactive/electric nuisances. The occupancies
are low intensity and low impact.

Ownership and Organization

Once the development is approved, StorageShopUSA™-Caledonia LLC will be
formed to purchase the land and see the project through to completion.

The StorageShopUSA™-Caledonia development will be organized under the
condominium form of ownership pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 703. A copy of the
condominium rules is included with this packet. A condominium association will be
formed and as the units sell, unit owners will become part of the association. Once the
units are sold, StorageShopUSA™-Caledonia LLC will turn over management to the
owners association.

Project Schedule

Construction is planned to start in fall of 2024. It is anticipated the project will be
built in one (1) phase with the entire project completed in 2025. Each building
requires a separate building permit and approval from DSPS and will be occupied as
they are completed. Although there is no “phasing”, the buildings are constructed in a
phased manner, generally having several buildings at various stages of construction
and as they are completed, they are sold and occupied. Generally, they will be
constructed according to the building number they have been assigned.

Additional Design Considerations

The typical StorageShopUSA™ development design has been approved by the
Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) 24 times.

● 11 - 2,500sf “duplex” buildings for a total 22 - 1,250sf units. 27,500sf total
space.

● Each unit will have a 19ft wide x 18ft long parking designated for its use
(described as limited common element on the condominium plat) The parking
area provides ADA accessibility to its corresponding unit. No additional
parking areas are provided nor are they necessary. Additional stalls only attract
more intense users and that is not the type of user StorageShopUSA™, and its
owners, want to join the community. Attached is a traffic study performed a
little over a year ago from the very first StorageShopUSA™ development in
2004. Pictures were recorded every half hour for the entire business day and
shows very light traffic.



Proposed restriction is no more than 1 employee; therefore, 2 spaces/unit is all
that is needed and provided. Historically, the designated parking area in front
of each unit is all that is necessary – there are no additional parking areas.

● 10-20ft separation distances between buildings create significantly better fire
protection and drive isles are consistent with fire access turning radius.
Sprinklers are not required. DSPS is considered the authority in the state of
Wisconsin on fire prevention and does not require sprinkler systems.

● Lighting is provided by each building, is hardwired, keeps the light focused on
the parking and drive isle in front and does not spill to neighboring properties.

● The Development will provide 24/7 access. Business operations are also
regulated by Town of Caledonia ordinances.

● Generally, the entire site is graded, and the perimeter is stabilized. Certificates
of occupancy are obtained as each building is completed. This phased
approach allows units to be occupied while other units are under construction
provided an asphalt binder or asphalt millings are in place. All landscape
plantings and the asphalt surface coat occur after completion of the last units.

● There is only one monument sign which identifies StorageShopUSA™ and the
address of the development. Individual signs are allowed only inside the front
window of the unit.

● One central dumpster is provided and serviced twice a month, sometimes only
once a month, at the discretion of the unit owners through their association.
The dumpster will be screened and is centrally located on the site.

● All StorageShopUSA™ developments comply with stormwater and erosion
control ordinances.



StorageShopUSA I Wisconsin's Commercial Storage & Office Warehouse Condo Provider 

a 

https:/ /storageshopusa.com/[10/28/2022 6:21 :06 AM] 

"""""

StarageShapUSA ™ 
Business and Storage Condominiums 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



 

 

23



24



25



26



27



Site Plan

28



29



30



31



32



ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF

STORAGESHOPUSA-CALEDONIA
CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

33



ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF
STORAGESHOPUSA-CALEDONIA CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ITEM PAGE

1. Signs D-1

2. Obstructions D-1

3. Animals D-1

4. Hanging of Garments and Window Coverings D-1

5. Protrusions D-1

6. Damage to Common Elements D-2

7. Noise D-2

8. Commercial Use; Zoning Code D-2

9. Unit Rental D-2

10. Insurance Rates D-3

11. Maintenance of Unit D-3

12. Nuisances D-3

13. Parking D-3

14. Service and Recreational Vehicles D-4

15. Blank D-4

16. Storage D-4

17. Common Elements Maintenance D-4

18. Applicability to All Owners D-4

19. Modifications D-4

20. Trash D-4

21. Ventilation D-4

22-24. Other D-5

i

34



ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF

STORAGESHOPUSA – CALEDONIA CONDOMINIUM

The following administrative rules and regulations are adopted by
StorageShopUSA-Caledonia LLC, (hereinafter “the Declarant”), on behalf of the
STORAGESHOPUSA – CALEDONIA CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION,
INC., (hereinafter the “Association”) for the purpose of assuring that StorageShopUSA –
Caledonia Condominium shall be operated in an efficient and orderly manner so as to create
a pleasant living environment for all Unit Owners. In furtherance of this purpose, all Unit
Owners shall have an affirmative duty to maintain all property of the Condominium in a neat
and orderly condition and shall abide by the following rules and regulations which may be
amended by the Association:

1. Signs. No sign, including a “For Rent” or a “For Sale” sign, advertisement, notice, or
other lettering shall be exhibited on any portion of the Condominium without the prior
written consent of the Association except as provided for in the Declaration, or with
written approval of the Board.

2. Obstructions. The Common Elements, including but not be limited to, the sidewalks,
entrances, passageways, grass, lanes and driveways shall not be obstructed or
encumbered or used for any purpose other than ingress and egress to and from Units.
Personal property items, including but not be limited to, bicycles, tools, and toys
which are not in use shall not be allowed on the Common Elements. Bicycles shall be
kept inside the Unit or a garage when not in use.

3. Animals. No vicious animals are allowed in any part of the Condominium. All
animals must be kept on a leash at all times when not in the Unit.

4. Hanging of Garments and Window Coverings. The hanging of garments, rugs, and
similar articles from the windows or from any other facades of the Condominium
property shall not be allowed. No outdoor clothes lines shall be allowed at any time.
No sheets shall be used for window coverings unless on a temporary basis for a
reasonable period of time while awaiting window coverings.

5. Protrusions. Except for the standard awning and optional satellite dish as allowed in
the Declaration, no awning or other similar articles and no television antennae,
machines, air conditioning units, wiring for electrical or telephone installation, or
other similar protrusions shall be allowed on the exterior of the Condominium
property without the prior written consent of the Board. If such equipment is
necessary to upgrade the Unit, no consent may be unreasonably withheld by the
Board.

D-1
060663-3jjb-311006-srp/rsg
AssnBylawsSS

35



The only area for signage is at the entrance to the facility (reserved for the
StorageShopUSA sign). Real estate for sale or for rent signs are only allowed
inside the window area.

6. Damage to Common Elements. All damage to Common Elements or Limited
Common Elements caused by the moving or carrying of articles thereon or caused by
any other action shall be the responsibility of, and shall be paid for by, the Unit
Owner or person causing such damage.

7. Noise. Unit Owners shall not unreasonably disturb other Unit Owners. No Unit
Owner shall conduct or permit any soliciting at the Condominium. No children shall
be permitted to play or remain in the Common Elements.

8. Commercial Use; Zoning Code. All Units shall be used by their respective Unit
Owners only as small scale business office, owner workshop, and associated
warehouse pursuant to Article 6.01 of the Declaration, and for no other purpose
whatsoever. The use of the Condominiums is limited to those commercial uses
allowed currently or in the future by state and local zoning and use laws and building
codes. Each owner is required to document that their use is compliant with such laws
and codes, and the Association is given a private right to require owners to comply
with the same. NO AUTO REPAIR OR WELDING BUSINESS IS ALLOWED IN
THE CONDOMINIUM. COMMERCIAL WOOD WORKING IS REGULATED BY
THE ASSOCIATION. NO RETAIL SHOPS ARE ALLOWED

No overnight sleeping in any Unit shall be permitted, and no storage outside the Unit
is permitted.

Generally, the uses of the Condominiums are limited to the following:

Low intense businesses, trades and contracting services, and personal
workspace which provide offices, warehousing, and workshops limited to no
more than one (1) employee onsite and requires two (2) or less parking stalls.

NOTE: Businesses that generate high traffic and/or have high intense operations are
discouraged.

The site is on private septic and occupancies that require water usage of MORE
THAN 7500 GALS/YEAR ARE PROHIBITED.

The facility will be accessible 24/7; except that, all businesses’ hours of operation will
be regulated by the Village of Caledonia Ordinances.

9. Unit Rental. Other than for commercial wood working and other prohibited uses, a
Unit may be rented by a Unit Owner in compliance with the Declaration. All leases

D-2
060663-3jjb-311006-srp/rsg
AssnBylawsSS

36



shall be in writing and copies of all such leases shall be provided to any other Unit
Owner upon request. All rental agreements shall contain as part of them an
agreement by all parties a statement that any tenant, subtenant, assignee or other
leaseholder has had an opportunity to read the Condominium documents and is
subject to all terms of the Declaration, Bylaws and Rules, as amended from time to
time or the Board shall have the power to void the instrument creating the tenancy.
The Unit owner may be fined up to $100.00 per day by the Board for a violation of
this paragraph. Renting the Unit for just storage is not allowed.

10. Insurance Rates. Unit Owners shall be prohibited from conducting any activity or
storing any article in their Units or on the Limited Common Elements and Common
Elements which would increase the rate of insurance on the condominium property.

11. Maintenance of Unit. Each Unit Owner shall promptly perform or shall have
promptly performed all maintenance and repair work within his/her own Unit which
work, if omitted, would adversely affect any Common Elements or Limited Common
Elements, any portion of the condominium property belonging to other Unit Owners,
or the condominium property as a whole, and each Unit Owner shall be responsible
for all damages and liabilities that any failure to maintain or repair may engender.

Each owner shall shovel their own parking areas within 3 feet of the building. The
remainder of the parking area is performed by the snow plowing contract with the
association.

12. Nuisances. No immoral, improper, offensive, or unlawful use shall be made of the
condominium property or any part thereof, and each Unit Owner at said Unit Owner’s
expense shall comply with, perform, and fully satisfy all city, state, and federal laws,
statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, or requirements applicable to his/her unit.

13. Parking. Unit Owners shall neither park, nor shall they permit their families, tenants
or guests to park, in the parking areas of other Unit Owners, or in such manner as to
prevent ready access to the parking areas of other Unit Owners. Improperly parked
vehicles shall be subject to removal at their Unit Owner’s expense. No parking shall
be permitted at any time on any drive lanes or roads which run through the
Condominium. No Unit Owner shall keep a junk vehicle (defined as a non-operating
vehicle) on the Condominium at any time. No Unit Owner shall conduct any vehicle
repair except on vehicles parked in a garage.

No unit owner or guest may park any vehicle anywhere overnight, and no
parking stalls may be leased for more than three years or conveyed, sold,
transferred or assigned separately from the unit for which it is a limited
common element.

14. Service and Recreational Vehicles. Storage of service vehicles owned or operated by
Unit Owners, boats, travel trailers, mobile homes, campers, and other recreational

D-3
060663-3jjb-311006-srp/rsg
AssnBylawsSS

37



vehicles outside of the Unit shall be prohibited. Temporary waiver of these
prohibitions may be obtained from the Association Board of Directors, which waiver
or denial thereof shall be in the sole discretion of the Association Board of Directors.

15. (intentionally left blank).

16. Storage. The Association shall not be liable for any loss or damage of or to property
placed in any Unit or in the Limited Common Elements and Common Elements. No
storage may be maintained outside any Unit.

17. Common Elements Maintenance. Unit Owners shall be prohibited from discarding
any dirt or materials from the windows, balconies, or doors of the Units and shall be
prohibited from discarding any dirt or materials into the Common Elements and
Limited Common Elements.

18. Applicability to All Owners . Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, all rules and regulations shall apply to, and shall be complied with by, all
Unit Owners and all persons under their control, including, but not limited to, the Unit
Owners’ servants, tenants, employees, agents, visitors, licensees, and family
members.

19. Modifications. No unit owner may modify their Unit or the Common Element
without prior consent from the Board of Directors and as provided under Article III of
the Condominium. See WARNING in Declaration. All modifications or additions to
the Common Element shall be made with Board consent, and the Board shall require
that style and color match other Common Element.

20. Trash. Trash disposal is the duty of each Unit owner, and no trash container may be
placed outside of the Unit. Notwithstanding the above, Declarant or the Association
may designate a place on the Common Area for trash disposal and may provide
individual trash containers for each unit.

21. Ventilation. Ventilation is required to meet the requirements of Chapter SPS 364.
Depending on the use, mechanical or natural ventilation is acceptable. Penetrations to
the structure are limited to the rear wall off each unit. Roof penetrations are subject to
approval of the Association. A fresh air intake HVAC system is required for any use
that needs to provide for “human comfort” in accordance with the according to the
state commercial building code.

The units have been conditionally approved as an S-1 moderate hazard storage
building. Motorized vehicles may not be driven into the building for loading,
unloading, or stored unless appropriate ventilation requirements for an enclosed
parking garage are met. Additionally, hazardous materials such as fuel, gun powder,
fireworks, fertilizers, etc. may not be stored in the building unless the limitations in
the amounts addressed in IBC 307 are adhered to. The owner shall be responsible to

D-4
060663-3jjb-311006-srp/rsg
AssnBylawsSS

38



address these storage materials with the ensuing HVAC design professional so that
appropriate exhausts and make up air are facilitated.

Unit owner MUST record the use and any changes in use with the Association.
Failure to do so may result in fines and penalties.

OTHER

22. Exterior light in front is used to provide security and street lighting. Each unit owner
has one and is responsible for keeping the light in working condition at all times.
The fixture is equipped with a timer/and photocell combination to turn on and off
automatically.

23. Road restrictions will be placed on the private road that match the Village of
Caledonia and Racine County, Wisconsin, ordinances. Enforcement and subsequent
penalties shall be in accordance with Racine County ordinances and policies.

24. Service door and overhead door repair, maintenance and replacement are the
responsibility of each Unit owner. Unit owner must keep the door free of any dents
or scrapes. Replacement doors must be approved by the Association for both style
and color. Repairs must match the original aesthetic appearance.

These Rules may be amended by the Board of Directors of the Association by a
majority vote.

These administrative rules and regulations are adopted on this ______ day of
______________, 2024, and shall be effective upon the establishment of the Association.

STORAGESHOPUSA – CALEDONIA
CONDOMINIUM UNIT OWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.

By: StorageShopUSA-Caledonia LLC, Declarant

_______________________________
Gregory A. Thompson, President

This instrument drafted by:
Gregory A. Thompson

D-5
060663-3jjb-311006-srp/rsg
AssnBylawsSS

39



40



41



42



43



StorageShopUSA™ Permitted Uses

SEC. 16-6-12 (a)
STATEMENT OF INTENT: This district is intended to provide for the orderly
and attractive grouping at appropriate locations of commercial activities of a
more general retail and wholesale nature, and of the office and service
facilities serving a larger community trade area. The size and location of such
districts shall be based upon relationship of the community need and economy.

The office/workshop units will accommodate the following uses consistent with the
B-3 zoning and commercial future use:

Office & workshop space for trade and contracting services.
Commercial contractors such as electricians, plumbers, and other types of
trades and service businesses which require a small office and some workshop
space. These types of businesses generate little traffic with low intensity and
can be identified as requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no drop-off/pick-up, no
retail, and no more than one employee.

Personal workshop and storage - activities consistent with what a typical
homeowner uses their garage for, but bigger.
Personal workshop and storage space for crafters, antiquers, and alike. These
types of uses generate little traffic with low intensity and can be identified as
requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no drop-off/pick-up, no retail, and no more
than one employee.

Other business uses that are not specifically permitted or prohibited that are
deemed to be of a character compatible with a use listed above.
Other similar uses such as a home-based business, that generate little traffic
with low intensity and can be identified as requiring 2 or less parking stalls, no
drop-off/pick-up, no retail, and no more than one employee.

Proposed uses fall under these two categories allowable under B3:

Professional Office
Personal Service

Examples of Professional Office / Personal Service uses in previous StorageShopUSA™ developments
include:

Electrical contractor
Plumbing contractor
Remodeling contractor
Carpet cleaner
Cleaning business
Remodeling contractor
Security systems contractor



Salvation Army office/workshop
Property manager office/workshop
Matco tools distributor
Computer networking
Online marketing/advertising studio-shop
Internet/online wholesaler
Commercial artist
Inflatables for kids’ parties
"Coffee cart" operator
Carpentry workshops
Antiques collector/trader (no retail)
Barrel maker



 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024 

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 5D 

Proposal: Conditional Use Amendment and Building, Site, and Operation Plan 

Description: A request to approve a conditional use amendment and building, site, and operation plan for 
the construction of a ±10,000 square-foot commercial building for the operation of a 
commercial trailer sales and service business with outdoor storage and display of 
merchandise for the parcel located on USH 41, directly south of 6009 USH 41 
 

Applicant(s): Luke Sebald, Keller Inc. 

Address(es): USH 41 

Suggested 
Motions: 

That the Plan Commission recommends the Village Board approves the proposed conditional 
use amendment extending the time of compliance by twelve months to begin construction of 
a commercial building to operate a commercial building to operate a commercial trailer sales 
and service business with outdoor display of merchandise for the property located  directly 
south of 6009 USH 41, Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-19-037-000 as outlined in Exhibit A for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed use is permitted by conditional use permit in the B-3 Highway Business 
District through the conditional use review process. 

2. The proposed conditional use is in accordance with the purpose and intent of Title 16 
of Municipal Code and complies with all its sections.  

 
That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that a building, site, and 
operation plan for the construction of a ±10,000 square foot commercial building to operate a 
commercial trailer sales and service business with outdoor display of merchandise for the 
property located directly south of 6009 USH 41, Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-19-037-000 be 
approved for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed use is consistent with the conditions of the conditional use permit. 
2. The proposed meets the criteria for approval as stated in Sec. 16-4-1 (Required 

Plans) of Municipal Code.  
 

Owner(s): Caledonia Trailers LLC 

Tax Key(s): 104-04-23-18-006-000 

Lot Size(s): 40.92 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):  B-3, Highway Business District and A-2, Agricultural District   

Overlay District(s): Shoreland-Wetland Overlay District  
 

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Commercial, Medium Density Residential, Isolated Natural Resource Area 

  

 
 
 
 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5D 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Background: In 2022, the Village granted a conditional use for the operation of a commercial trailer sales and service 
business with outdoor storage. This conditional use was amended in 2023 to extend the compliance period by twelve 
months to begin construction. Additionally, the Village approved a building, site, and operation plan for the 
construction of a ±20,761 square-foot commercial building intended for the future operation of a commercial trailer 
sales and service business with outdoor display and storage of merchandise (never constructed).  
 
The Applicant is currently requesting approval for a conditional use amendment to extend the compliance period by 
an additional twelve months and a building, site, and operation plan to develop ±3 acres in the southwest corner of 
the ±40-acre parcel and construct a ±10,000 square-foot commercial building for the operation of a commercial trailer 
sales and service business with four gravel areas for outdoor display and storage of merchandise. The building will 
include a sales floor, service area, and offices. In addition, revisions were made to the conditions and building, site, 
and operation plan reflect updates to the Village’s zoning code. Additional details regarding the use of the proposed 
space are noted in the Applicant’s narrative.  
 
Zoning & Land Use: The proposed development is contained within the area of the parcel zoned B-3 Highway 
Business District and outside of the Shoreland-Wetland Overlay District. The proposed development meets the intent 
and regulations (building size, height, and setbacks) of the B-3, Highway Business District. Further, the development 
meets the conditions of the conditional use permit, and the land use is consistent with the Village’s adopted 
comprehensive plan.  
 
Environmental: The parcel contains ±21 acres of wetlands/isolated natural resource areas. The site also contains 
navigable streams as identified by WDNR. The placement of the proposed development is outside of the wetlands, 
isolated natural resource areas, and setback requirements for the navigable streams on the site. 
 
Design: The proposed 24-foot-tall building will be constructed of precast concrete wall panels painted to create 
distinct top, middle, and bottom sections, which is consistent with the Village building design guidelines. The west 
elevation will feature large glass sections, a canopy, and a glass vestibule at the main entrance. Part of the front 
elevation will be painted blue to accentuate the proposed wall sign and highlight the building's entrance. The north 
elevation will have similar materials and include three overhead doors: one accessing the display room and two 
providing access to the service bays. The south elevation will also have three overhead doors, all leading to the 
service bays. The east elevation will consist of concrete panel walls. No building mechanicals are shown on the 
drawings; however, the Applicant is aware that all ground and rooftop mechanicals must be screened from the right-
of-way. Screening from the freeway view is not required due to the change in elevation. The proposed design meets 
requirements of Municipal Code and is consistent with Village design guidelines. 
 
The Applicant proposes to fence the perimeter of the ±3-acre development site. A 6-foot-tall decorative metal fence 
is proposed along USH 41, while a 6-foot-tall chain link fence is proposed along the north, east, and south edges of 
the development site. The Applicant also proposes to enclose the dumpsters, which are to be located in the south 
east corner of a display area to the north and east of the building, with a 12-foot x 12-foot chain link fence with privacy 
slats. 
 
Landscaping: The Applicant’s proposed landscape plan includes a mix of trees planted approximately 50 feet apart 
and shrubs along USH 41, creating a vegetative fence. A mix of shrubs, perennial grasses, and flowers is proposed 
for the driveway entrance. The parking lot end caps will consist of low-height shrubs. The north, west, and south sides 
of the building foundation will feature a mixture of shrubs and perennials. The southwest corner of the site will have a 
combination of evergreens and deciduous trees, which will continue along the south side of the site, extending the 
length of the parking area. East of this area is a wetland where the land cannot be disturbed. A line of trees will extend 
northward from the east end of the site. The proposed landscape plan meets requirements of Municipal Code and is 
consistent with Village design guidelines. The Plan Commission has the discretion to request additional landscaping 
around the addition or elsewhere on the site. 
 
Parking: The Applicant proposes a parking lot with 22 (9 feet x 20 feet) parking spaces, including one handicap 
space, west of the building. An additional 10 (9 feet x 20 feet) future parking spaces are dedicated to the south of the 
proposed parking lot, bringing the total to 32 parking spaces. Per code, the minimum number of parking stalls is one 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 5D 

Page 3 of 3 
 

per every 150 square feet of floor area. The proposed dimensions and number of parking spaces meets requirements 
of Municipal Code. Asphalt will be used to surface the parking and drive aisle areas on the site. 
 
Lighting: The Applicant proposes light poles to be located within the trailer display areas and customer parking areas. 
In addition, wall lights are proposed for all sides of the building. All proposed lighting at the site is cast down with full 
cut-off fixtures and zero-degree tilt. The Applicant’s provided photometric plan shows the foot-candle extent of exterior 
lighting, with no more than 0.5 foot-candles at the property line. The proposed lighting meets requirements of 
Municipal Code and is consistent with Village design guidelines.  
 
Engineering: Applicant to work with the Village of Caledonia Engineering Department and comply with all regulations 
and requirements.  
 
Access: The Applicant is proposing a driveway off USH 41 with a 35-foot-wide driveway to access the site. Per the 
Applicant, it is anticipated that the maximum number of automotive trips to and from the site would be 40 per day and 
the number of daily truck trips would be four.  
 
Signage: A master sign plan for the site was approved in 2023 allowing for an oversized 35-foot tall pole sign (20 
feet x 6 feet) and oversized wall sign (23.84 feet x 4.83 feet). 
 
Fire Department: The Fire Department indicated no concerns regarding the proposed site plan; however, they will 
work with the Applicant to ensure compliance with sprinkling requirements for this building type. 
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed addition, staff has drafted a suggested motion recommending 
approval of the building, site, and operation plan for the proposed development located on USH 41, directly south of 
6009 USH 41. 

 

 

Prepared by:                                                                   Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 

             Todd Roehl                                                                      Peter Wagner, AICP 
Planner/Zoning Administrator                                          Development Director 

 
 

 
 



Exhibit A:  
Caledonia Trailers Conditions and Restrictions 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Applicant: Caledonia Trailers LLC   Approved by Plan Commission:  
Property Address(es): USH 41    Approved by Village Board:  
Parcel ID No.: 104-04-22-19-037-000 
 

1. LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
That part of the Northwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 19, Township 4 North, Range 22 
East, Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northwest ¼ of said Section; thence North 
89˚22’27” East along North line of said ¼ Section 147.22 feet to the point of beginning of the 
lands hereinafter described; thence North 89˚22’27” East continuing along said North line 
936.21 feet to a point; thence South 00˚16’26” West 1,127.06 feet to a point; thence South 
89˚20’17” West 971.93 feet to a point in the East line of East Frontage Road; thence North 
00˚16’26” West along said East line 767.98 feet to a point; thence North 05˚23’36” East 
continuing along said East line 361.68 feet to the point of beginning. Said lands as described 
contains 1,089,273 square feet of 25.006 acres. 
 

2. REQUIRED PLANS, EASEMENTS, AGREEMENTS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

A. All requirements of the Village of Caledonia Municipal Code are in effect and apply to this 
conditional unless modified as set forth herein. 

B. The conditional use as set forth in the application, narrative, and concept site plans received 
December 29, 2021 are incorporated hereby by reference and shall be modified to comply with these 
conditions and restrictions.  A precise detailed site plan for the area affected by the conditional use, 
shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Plan Commission and Village Board prior to the issuance 
of any building or occupancy permits. This plan shall show and describe the following: 

1) General Development Plan 
a)   Detailed building/structure location(s) with 

setbacks 
b)   Square footage of all buildings/structures 
c)   Area(s) for future expansion 
d)  Area(s) to be paved 
e)  Access drive(s) (width and location) 
f)   Sidewalk location(s) 
g)  Parking layout and traffic circulation 
i)  Location(s) and future expansion 
ii)  Number & type(s) of dwellings 
iii)  Number of garage & surface parking 

spaces 
iv)  Dimensions 
v)  Setbacks 
h)   Location(s) of loading berth(s) 
i)     Location of sanitary sewer (existing & 

proposed) 
j)    Location of water (existing & proposed) 
k)   Location of storm sewer (existing & 

proposed) 
I)   Location(s) of wetlands (field verified) 
m) Location(s) and details of sign(s) 
n)  Location(s) and details of proposed 

fences/gates 

2) Landscape Plan 
a) Screening plan, including parking lot 

screening/berming 
b) Number, initial size, and type of plantings 
c) Percentage open/green space 

3) Building Plan 
a) Architectural elevations (w/dimensions) 
b) Building floor plans 
c) Materials of construction (including colors) 

4) Lighting Plan 
a) Types & color of fixtures 
b) Mounting heights 
c) Types & color of poles 
d) Photometrics of proposed fixtures 

5) Grading, Drainage and Stormwater 
Management Plan 
a) Contours (existing & proposed) 
b) Location(s) of storm sewer (existing and 

proposed) 
c) Location(s) of stormwater management  

structures and basins (if required) 
6) Fire Protection 

a) Locations of existing & proposed fire hydrants 
b) Interior floor plan(s) 
c) Materials of construction 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
C.   All plans for new buildings, additions, exterior remodeling, site modifications, and landscaping 

shall be submitted to the Plan Commission and Village Board for their review and approval prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 

D. For any new buildings, additions, structures, and site modifications, site grading and drainage, 
stormwater management, and erosion control plans shall be submitted to the Village's Public 
Services Director for approval, if required. The Caledonia Utility District approval must be received 
prior to the issuance of any building permits. 

 
E.   All new electric, telephone and cable TV service wires or cable shall be installed underground 

within the boundaries of these properties. 
 

3.   SITE & USE RESTRICTIONS, MAINTENANCE & OPERATION REQUIREMENTS 

A. Uses allowed on this property shall be limited to those allowed in the B-3, Highway Business 
District, these Conditions and Restrictions, and all applicable sections of Municipal Code. 

B. Operation of a commercial trailers sales and service business with outdoor display of merchandise 
is permitted. 

 i.   Outdoor storage shall be limited to the parking and display of trailers for sale by the business. 

ii.  Trailers for sale shall be located in designated areas as approved by the Plan Commission 
on June 24, 2024. 

C. Solid waste collection and recycling shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

D. Removal of snow from off-street parking areas, walks, public sidewalks, private roads and access 
drives shall be the responsibility of the applicant.  Snow shall not be stored in the public right-of-
way.  

4.    PARKING AND ACCESS 

A. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) shall be performed and submitted to the Village Engineer for 
review prior to the submission of applications for Plan Commission review of site, building, 
landscaping, lighting, and similar plans. Required roadway improvements and modifications 
identified in the TIA shall be the responsibility of the applicant and all such improvements shall 
be installed prior to issuance of any occupancy permits and in accordance with a schedule 
established by the Village Engineer.   

B. The site plan shall include parking stalls with an average of no more than 1 stall for each 150 
square feet of floor area for this development. Parking stall dimensions shall be in accordance 
with SEC. 16-12-1(d) of Municipal Code.    

 
5. LIGHTING 

Plans for new outdoor lighting shall be submitted for review and approval by the Electrical Inspector 
and/or Development Director in accordance with SEC. 16-10-4 of Municipal Code.  All lighting at 
the site must be full cut-off lights that may not glare onto abutting properties or onto any public 
roadway. 

 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

6. SETBACKS 

The external setbacks for the development, per SEC. 16-6-12 Highway Business District, shall be 
at least as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 

Street  
Setback 

Rear  
Setback 

Side  
Setback 

Principal Structure 40 ft 40 ft 10 ft 

Accessory Structure 40 ft 40 ft 10 ft 

Parking 15 ft 0 ft 0 ft 

7. TIME OF COMPLIANCE 

The operator of the conditional use shall commence work in accordance with these Conditions and 
Restrictions within twelve (12) months from the date of adoption of the resolution authorizing this 
Conditional Use. This Conditional Use approval shall expire within twelve (12) months after the date 
of adoption of the resolution if a building permit has not been issued for this use and substantial 
work has not commenced. The applicant shall re-apply for a Conditional Use approval prior to 
recommencing work or construction. 

8. OTHER REGULATIONS 
 

Compliance with all other applicable Village, State, DNR and Federal regulations, laws, Code, 
ordinances, and orders, as amended, not heretofore stated or referenced, is mandatory. 

9. STORMWATER 

 The applicant must contact the Village of Caledonia Stormwater Utility District regarding Stormwater 
regulations for this site. Compliance with all regulations and requirements, as determined by the 
Village of Caledonia Stormwater Utility District is required. Stormwater management plans shall be 
submitted for approval and be in compliance with all Village requirements, as determined by the 
Public Services Director before permits are issued.    

10. FIRE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL 

Applicant shall obtain approval from the Village of Caledonia Fire Department and meet applicable 
codes. 

11. CALEDONIA SEWER AND WATER UTILITY DISTRICTS  

 Applicant must contact the Caledonia Sewer and Water Utility Districts regarding Utility District 
regulations for this site. Compliance with all regulations and requirements, as determined by the 
Caledonia Sewer and Water Utility Districts is required.  The site is located within the Caledonia 
Sewer and Water Service Area, but sanitary sewer and watermain are not available at this time. Due 
to sanitary sewer and watermain not being available, a declaration of restrictive covenants document 
will need to be executed by the owner prior to any building permits being issued. All buildings shall 
connect to public sanitary sewer and water when available.  

 

 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

12. SIGNAGE   

 The Village’s signage requirements are set forth in Title 16 of the Village’s Code of Ordinances. Any 
proposed advertising sign at the site will require a separate sign permit prior to installation. Please 
contact Village Zoning staff for advertising sign regulations and permit procedures. Banners, 
balloons, flashing or animated signs are prohibited. 

13. NO ACCUMULATION OF REFUSE AND DEBRIS  

 Any fence, wall, hedge, yard, space or landscaped area must be kept free of any accumulation of 
refuse or debris. Plant materials must be kept in a healthy growing condition and structures must be 
maintained in a sound manner. 

14. PROPERTY MAINTENANCE REQUIRED 

 A complete and thorough maintenance program must be established to insure attractiveness. The 
continued positive appearance of buildings and property is dependent upon proper maintenance 
attitudes and procedures. Maintenance programs must be established that include watering, 
maintaining and pruning all landscape planting areas including removal and replacement of dead or 
diseased landscaping; cleaning up litter; sweeping, cleaning and repairing paved surfaces; and 
cleaning, painting, and repairing windows and building façade.  All drives shall be paved with asphalt.  
Parking areas shall be paved or have placed upon them compacted recycled asphalt.  All drives and 
parking areas shall be maintained in a dust free condition. 

15. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS  

 The applicant must comply with the provisions of SEC. 16-10-4 of Municipal Code related to various 
performance standards and any conditions established by subsequent conditional use approval. 

16. ACCESS  

 The applicant must allow any Village or Racine County employee full and unlimited access to the 
project site at a reasonable time to investigate the project’s construction, operation, or maintenance. 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW  

 The applicant is responsible for obtaining all necessary federal, state, and local permits, approvals, 
and licenses. The applicant is required to comply with all applicable local, state, and federal 
regulations, including Titles 9, 14, 16 and 18 of the Village of Caledonia Code of Ordinances. 

18. REIMBURSE VILLAGE COSTS  

 Applicant shall reimburse the Village all costs incurred by the Village for review of this conditional 
use approval including but not limited to engineering, legal and planning review that occurred prior 
to permit issuance and during the implementation of the plans and construction of the improvements. 

19. AMENDMENTS TO CONDITIONAL USE  

 No additions, deletions, or changes may be made to the project, site plan, or these conditions without 
the Village of Caledonia’s prior approval.  All addition, deletion, and/or change requests must be 
submitted to the Village of Caledonia in writing. A minor change to the conditions of this permit, as 
deemed by the Zoning Administrator, may be made at a staff level, if authorized by the Zoning 
Administrator. 

20. BINDING EFFECT 
 

These conditions bind and are applicable to the Applicant, property owner, successor and assigns, 
owner's association(s) and any other users of the Property with respect to the uses on the Property. 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 

21. VIOLATIONS & PENALTIES 
 

Any violations of the terms of this conditions and restrictions of this Conditional Use shall be subject 
to enforcement and the issuance of citations in accordance with Village Code of Ordinances. If the 
owner, applicant or operator of the Conditional Use is convicted of two or more violations of these 
conditions and restrictions or any other municipal ordinances within any 12-month period the Village 
shall have the right to initiate revocation procedures for this Conditional Use, subject to the provisions 
of paragraph 22 herein. Nothing herein shall preclude the Village from commencing an action in 
Racine County Circuit Court to enforce the terms of this Conditional Use or to seek an injunction 
regarding any violation of this Conditional Use or any other Village ordinances. 

22. REVOCATION 
 

Should an applicant, its heirs, successors or assigns and any other users of the property fail to comply 
with the conditions and restrictions of the approval issued by the Village Board, the Conditional Use 
approval may be revoked. The process for revoking an approval shall generally follow the procedures 
for approving a Conditional Use as set forth in the Municipal Code. 
 

23. AGREEMENT  
 

The approval and execution of these conditions and restrictions shall confirm acceptance of the 
terms and conditions hereof by the owner, and these conditions and restrictions shall run with the 
property unless revoked by the Village or terminated by mutual agreement of the Village and the 
owner, and their subsidiaries, related entities, successors and assigns. Therefore, Caledonia 
Trailers, LLC; its heirs, successors, and assigns, including all users, future owners, occupants and 
owner's association(s), are responsible for full compliance with the above conditions. 
 

24. SUBSEQUENT OWNERS 
   

It is the property owner’s responsibility to inform any subsequent owner or operator of these 
conditions. 

 

 



E F
RO

NT
AG

E R
D

27
TH

 ST

W 5 MILE RD

HW
Y I

-94
 N

B
HW

Y I
-94

 SB

SUBJECT PROPERTY

Location Map: USH 41 ¯0 410 820205 Feet



Right Trailers Narrative 
 

 

 
May 28, 2024 

 
 
Village of Caledonia Plan Commission 5043 
Chester Lane 

Racine, WI 53402 
 
RE: Right Trailers – Ground Up Trailer Dealership & Service Center 

 
 
Dear Plan Commission Members, 

 
Right Trailers, Inc. was founded in May 2004 by Michael Scott and his father, Hugh Scott. The mission 
was to change the way people buy trailers and to make a positive impact to each community Right 
Trailers calls home. 

Today, Right Trailers has (4) locations over (800) trailers in inventory, an extensive parts inventory and 
six day a week customer service at its locations. 

Traffic to and from USH 41 Frontage Rd site will operate in much the same way as a new car 
dealership. It is anticipated that the maximum number of automotive trips to and from the site would 
be (40) per day. The number of daily truck trips would be (4). 

Product parking will be as shown on the Site Plan. The product parking will occur on (4) different display 
areas as noted on the civil plan. Customers will be shuttled around the product displays by foot or on 
golf carts. 

Customer parking will be located on the west side of the parcel for up to cars and trailers waiting for 
service. This area will be divided and screened by plantings per the landscaping plan. 

Right Trailers will be constructing a 10,000 sq. ft. precast panel building initially. This building is shown 
on the elevation plans supplied. It will be made up of the sales floor, service area, and offices. As the 
business grows Right Trailers anticipates the future construction of an additional 40,000 sq. ft. to 
house additional inventory, parts, and services. This will become a distribution point for Right Trailers’ 
Midwest operations. 



Right Trailers Narrative 
 

 

 
 
Hours of Operations will be as follows: 

Deliveries: Monday – Friday from 6:00 AM – 6:00 PM 
Retail: Monday – Saturday from 8:00 AM – 6:00 PM 
Customer Drop-Offs: By Appointment (to accommodate customers that cannot arrive during 
normal hours 

 
Right Trailers’ parcel is approximately 40-acres.  This initial building will include development of 
approximately three acres of the site. Future development of the parcel will be capped at 10 acres in 
total.  

 
The development will be confined to the non-wetland area of the parcel located on the southwest 
corner. The wetlands will remain undisturbed. This will provide a substantial separation from the 
residential area located to the east. 

 
In addition to the separation provided by the wetlands area the site will be in compliance with the 
Villages landscape requirements on both the east, west, and south sides of the development. This will 
provide additional visual breaks for the surrounding property owners and to the traffic on I-94. 

 
Along the frontage road there will be fencing to help secure the site when the business is closed. 
This security will allow reduced lighting on the site when the business is closed as discussed below. 

 
All lighting on site will be full cut-off lights that will not glare onto adjacent parcels. Once the business 
is closed for the evening only building security lighting will be left on. Security for the site will be 
through the use of site gates and security cameras which will be monitored off site. 

If any of the Plan Commission members, city planning department members, or the general public 
have any questions regarding Right Trailers’ new structure or site layout please feel free to contact 
Keller, Inc. at any time. Thank you all for your consideration of this project. 



Right Trailers Narrative 
 

 

 
 

OWNER Right Trailers, Inc. 
Michael Scott 
7220 US Highway 98 N 
Lakeland, FL 33809 

 
ARCHITECT/ Keller, Inc. 
BUILDER Luke Sebald (Project Manager) 

Chris Manske (Architect) 
W204 N11509 Goldendale Road 
Germantown, WI 53022 
(262) 250-9710 office 
(414) 397 0526 cell 
lsebald@kellerbuilds.com 

 
CIVIL ENGINEER CJ Engineering  
                                        Chris Jackson 
                                        9205 W Center St. 

Milwaukee, WI 53222 
(414) 443-1312 
chris@cj-engineering.com 

mailto:lsebald@kellerbuilds.com
mailto:chris@cj-engineering.com


BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS
PROJECT ADDRESS

E. FRONTAGE RD., CALEDONIA, WI 53108

APPLICABLE CODES

2015 International Building Code (w/ WI Amendments)
ASHRE Standard 90.1-2013

OCCUPANCY

M, F1
Accessory Use

----
Incidental Use

----
High-Piled Combustible Storage NO
Hazardous Materials NO

Multiple Control Areas NO

HEIGHT & AREA

Building Height: -'--" Maximum Allowed: -'--"
Number of Stories: -- Maximum Allowed: --
Total Building Area: -,--- S.F. Maximum Allowed: -,--- S.F.
Total Fire Area: -,--- S.F. Maximum Allowed: -,--- S.F.
Separated Occupancies (Firewall Between M & F1 Areas)
Unlimited Area Building NO

CONSTRUCTION TYPE

Construction Classification 2B
Fire Separation Distance -'--"

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Assumed Sprinkler Type N/A
Fire Alarm System YES/NO

MEANS OF EGRESS

Occupant Load --
Panic Hardware NO

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

Risk Category 2
Design Loads
        Roof Live Load 20 psf
        Walk-on IMP Ceiling Live Load -- psf
        Steel Framing

Collateral Load 5 psf (VERIFY)
        Wood Truss

Top Chord Dead Load --psf
Bottom Chord Load --psf

        Mezzanine/Second Floor/Basementoor/Mezz
Live Load -- psf
Point Load (Partition) -- psf

        Snow Load Criteria
Ground Snow Load (Pg) 30 psf
Exposure Factor (Ce)  0.9    
Thermal Factor (Ct) 1.0

        Wind Loads  
Wind Load 115 MPH  
Surface Roughness C  
Exposure Category  C

        Earthquake Load Criteria
Soil Site Class D
Ss --
S1 --

PLUMBING SYSTEMS

Mens WC Required #
Womens WC Required #
Drinking Fountain Required #

Other Source YES
Ambulatory Stall Required NO

MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

NO SINGLE PIECE OF EQUIPMENT OVER 400,000 BTU
NO BOILERS OVER 15PSO AND 10 HORSEPOWER

SITE INFORMATION
SITE CONTENT

Building Size 10,000 S.F. 0.5%
Hard Surface 28,136 S.F. 1.6%
Green Space 1,744,449 S.F. 97.9%
Parcel Size (Approx.) 1,782,582 S.F. 40.92 Acres
Parking Provided 22 Stalls
Area of Disturbance 38,136 S.F.

ZONING

Property Zoning --
Setbacks FY -'--"  SY -'--"  RY -'--"
Hard Surface Setback -'--"
Coverage Limit --%
Greenspace Requirement --%
Parking Required -- Stalls
Refuse Enclosure YES
RTU SCREENING NO

FLOOR AREAS

SECOND FLOOR

BUILDING & FIRE AREA 

SQUARE FOOTAGES

FIRST FLOOR
CANOPIES (COLUMN SUPPORTED)

BASEMENT

EXISTING NEW

------ S.F.
SUB-TOTAL

BUILDING AREA SUB-TOTALS
MEZZANINES
FIRE AREA TOTALS

------ S.F. ------ S.F.
------ S.F. 10,000 S.F. 10,000 S.F.
------ S.F. ------ S.F. ------ S.F.
------ S.F. ------ S.F. ------ S.F.
------ S.F.
------ S.F. ------ S.F. ------ S.F.
------ S.F.

REMODEL AREA TOTALS ------ S.F. --% OF BUILDING AREA

10,000 S.F. 10,000 S.F.

10,000 S.F. 10,000 S.F.

U
S 

41
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

R
D

.

PROPOSED

BUILDING

PROPOSED 
GRAVEL LOT

5'
-0

"

20
'-0

"
14

5'
-0

"
 5

0'
-0

"
5'

-0
"

10
0'

-0
"

5'
-0

"
28

'-0
"

20'-0" 28'-0" 20'-0" 6'-0"5'-0" 100'-0" 33'-0"

1

13

14

22

FLAG POLE

45'-0" 20'-0" 90'-0" 56'-11 3/4"

35
'-0

"

28'-0"

PROPOSED 
GRAVEL LOT

FUTURE
GRAVEL LOT

PROPOSED
SWM AREA

PROPOSED
SWM AREA

(2
2)

 9
'-0

"x
20

'-0
" P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
TA

LL
S

6'-0" HT. CHAINLINK FENCE (GALVANIZED)
W/ BARBED WIRE ALONG TOP METAL,
FENCE ALONG NORTH, EAST, SOUTH &
WEST PROPERTY LINES

6'-0" HT. CHAINLINK FENCE (GALVANIZED)
W/ BARBED WIRE ALONG TOP METAL,
FENCE ALONG NORTH, EAST, SOUTH &
WEST PROPERTY LINES

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

34'-6 5/8"

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

WISCONSIN

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

C1.0
04.04.2023

L. SEBALD

C. MANSKE

J.R.S.

-------

-------

P23076

-------

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

C
A

L
E

D
O

N
IA

,

R
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
S

RIGHT TRAILERS

PROPOSED FOR:

CALEDONIA,

NORTH

SHEET INDEX

C1.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
A1.0 FLOOR PLAN
A2.0 ELEVATIONS
A2.1 ELEVATIONS
A3.0 SECTIONS
A7.0 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
S1.0 FOUNDATION PLAN

THE LOT DIMENSIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE INTERPRETED 
VALUES.  FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION WITH STATE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
AND/OR WITH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DATA WHEN AVAILABLE IS REQUIRED.

0' 25' 50' 100' 200'

1" = 50'-0"
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

FIRE AREA "B"

11,742 S.F.

1 04.24.2023 J.R.S.
2 05.15.2023 J.R.S.
3 09.05.2023 J.R.S.
4 04.09.2024 J.R.S.
5 05.14.2024 J.R.S.
6

WEST PROPERTY LINES

2015 IECC
37'-0"20'-0"20'-0"

D 
OT

(CLM) 06.06.2024



10"

2'-2" 6'-0" 3'-0" 1'-6" 9'-0" 1'-6" 3'-0" 6'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 6'-0" 3'-0" 12'-0"

9'x10' GLASS O.H.D.
102A

WASH BAY
119
EXPOSED STRUCTURE

1

A3.0

2

A3.0

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
118C

4'
-0

"
12

'-0
"

4'
-0

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

4'
-0

"
12

'-0
"

4'
-0

"

10
0'

-0
"

12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0"

100'-0"

10
"

7'
-2

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

7'
-2

"

10
"

PARTS

COUNTER
112

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
118A

VEST.
105
DUST COVER

@ 12'-0" AFF

GWB @ 10'-0" AFF

105B

OFFICE
116
A.C.T. @ 8' AFF

OFFICE
115
A.C.T. @ 8' AFF

OFFICE
114
DUST COVER @

10' AFF ABOVE

OFFICE
113
A.C.T. @ 8' AFF

7'
-7

 1
/4

"
4 

7/
8"

8'
-1

"
4 

7/
8"

22
'-8

"
5'

-0
"

10
'-0

"
4'

-9
 5

/8
"

4 
7/

8"
9'

-4
"

4 
7/

8"

9'
-4

"

4 
7/

8"

9'
-4

"

4 
7/

8"

9'
-4

 5
/8

"

113

114

115

116

CUSTOMER

LOUNGE
104

VEST.
101
DUST COVER @

12' AFF ABOVE

GWB @ 10' AFF

SHOWROOM
102

SERVICE

BAYS
118

TLT.
111
10'-0" DUST COVER

TLT.
110
10'-0" DUST COVER

STAFF

LOUNGE
109
12'-0" DUST COVER

T
L

T
.

1
0
8

G
Y

B
 @

 8
'-

1
0
"

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 D
U

S
T

 C
O

V
E

R

A
B

O
V

E
 @

 1
2
'-

0
"
 A

F
F

JAN. /

MECH.
106
AREA OF DUST COVER

ABOVE @ 12'-0" AFF

PASS.
107

PARTS &

ACCESSORIERS
DISPLAY
103

PARTS

STORAGE
117

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
119A

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
118D

118B

119B

109

110

111

118E

102B

108

106

105A

101A 101B

13'-9 3/4" 6'-8 1/2" 10'-9 7/8" 2'-3"

4 7/8"

11'-2"
7 1/4"

10'-11 7/8"
4 7/8"

2'-0" 16'-0" 3'-2"
10"

16'-0" 3'-2"
10"

7'
-0

"
7 

1/
4"

7'
-0

"
4 

7/
8"

6'
-0

"

4 
7/

8"

14
'-0

 5
/8

"

32'-6 3/4" 7 1/4" 12'-0"

7 1/4"

11'-0" 2'-4 3/4" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 3'-2" 10"

7'-4" 6'-0" 2'-10" 4'-0" 1'-10" 10'-2" 8'-0" 3'-0" 2'-0"

4'
L.

 B
AS

E 
C

AB
G

W
B 

SO
F.

 @
 1

0'
-0

" A
FF

 / 
D

U
ST

 C
O

VE
R

 @
 1

0'
-7

"

VE
N

D
IN

G
SM

AR
T 

TV
C

O
FF

EE

8'
L.

 B
AS

E 
& 

U
P.

 C
AB

S

R
EF

.
M

IC
.

M
IC

.
TR

AS
H

/
R

EC
.

PA
R

T.
 H

T.
 W

AL
L

(16) 12x18 2-TIER LOCKERS

3'x4'
A.D.A.
SHWR.

U
TI

L.
 

SI
N

K

FU
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T 
6"

 S
TU

D
 W

AL
L

G
IR

D
ER

 (W
F 

BE
AM

) L
IN

E

7'
H

T.
 H

.M
. D

O
O

R
S 

W
/ 2

4"
 S

ID
EL

IG
H

TS
 (T

YP
.)

7'
H

T.
 H

.M
. D

O
O

R
S 

W
/ 2

4"
 S

ID
EL

IG
H

TS
 (T

YP
.)

R
EC

EP
TI

O
N

 D
ES

K 
(V

ER
IF

Y
FI

N
AL

 D
ES

IG
N

 &
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
)

AC
C

EN
T 

/ L
O

G
O

PA
R

T.
 H

T.
W

AL
L 

(V
ER

IF
Y

FI
N

AL
 D

ES
IG

N
 &

 L
O

C
.)

SPAN OF TRUSSES SPAN OF TRUSSES

F.D. F.D.

F.D.

F.D.
C.B.

TR
EN

C
H

 D
R

AI
N

PR
ES

SU
R

E 
W

AS
H

ER

N
O

TE
: T

H
IS

 W
AL

L 
TO

 B
E 

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 A

S 
3-

H
R

 F
IR

E 
W

AL
L

KN
O

C
K-

O
U

T 
PA

N
EL

FU
TU

R
E 

12
'x1

6'
 O

.H
.D

.

N
O

TE
: T

H
IS

 W
AL

L 
TO

 B
E 

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 A

S 
3-

H
R

 F
IR

E 
W

AL
L

5'-0"x5'-0" 
CONC. STOOP

5'-0"x5'-0" 
CONC. STOOP

5'
-0

"x
5'

-0
" 

C
O

N
C

. S
TO

O
P

6'
-0

"x
5'

-0
" 

C
O

N
C

. S
TO

O
P

10'-0"x5'-0" 
CONC. SLAB

37'-0"x5'-0" 
CONC. SLAB

5'-0"x12'-0" 
CONC. SLAB

1/
2 

LT
.

D
IS

PL
AY

 S
H

EL
VI

N
G

 (B
Y 

O
W

N
ER

)

ELEC. SERVICE

4'
-4

"
3'

-4
"

4'
-4

"
4'

-4
"

3'
-4

"
4'

-4
"

10
0'

-0
"

8'
-0

"
(1

1)
 P

R
EC

AS
T 

PA
N

EL
S 

@
 1

2'
-0

" W
ID

TH
84

'-0
"

8'
-0

"

10"
2'-2" 6'-0" 6'-0" 6'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 6'-0" 3'-0" 12'-0" 4'-4" 3'-4" 4'-4" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 3'-2"

10"

12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0"

100'-0"

PVC CURTAINS & TRACK

PV
C

 C
U

R
TA

IN
S 

& 
TR

AC
K

56
'-4

"
42

'-0
"

26
'-0

"

WHEEL BALANCER

TIRE CHANGER

4'-0"

14
'-0

"

12
'-0

"

4'
x1

4'
 R

O
O

F 
AB

O
VE

SERVICE BAY

18'-0"

7'
-4

"

COL.

COL.

COL.

TYPICAL EXISTING WALL

DEMO WALLS

WALL KEY

NEW WALL/FURRING

NEW MASONRY/
VENEER WALL
NEW COOLER/
FREEZER WALLS

NEW FOUNDATION WALL

FIRE WALL OR
FIRE BARRIER

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A1.0
04.04.2023

L. SEBALD

C. MANSKE

J.R.S.

-------

-------

P23076

-------

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

C
A

L
E

D
O

N
IA

,

R
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
S

3/16" = 1'-0"
FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

1 04.24.2023 J.R.S.
2 05.15.2023 J.R.S.
3 09.05.2023 J.R.S.
4 04.09.2024 J.R.S.
5 05.14.2024 J.R.S.
6



FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

T.O. PRECAST

123' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING

97' - 0"

23
'-0

"
1'

-0
"

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

8'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 8'-0"

PR
EC

AS
T 

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
 =

 2
4'

-0
"

1

A3.0

100'-0"

INSULATED PRECAST PENEL WALLS
(PAINTED), IN WIDTHS AS DIMENSIONED
AND W/ 1/2" D. x 2" W. REVEALS AS SHOWN

ROD-SUSPENDED FLAT ROOF CANOPY
W/ PREFINISHED HEAVY GA. METAL
FLASHING, FASCIA & SOFFIT

4'-0"

1'
-0

"
10

'-0
" KNOCK-OUT PANEL FOR

FUTURE 12'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.

PREFINISHED METAL CAP (TYPICAL)

DECK BRG.

122' - 0"

WALL PACK WALL PACKWALL PACK

PREFINISHED METAL CAP
(AT WEST PARAPET BEYOND)

PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER
& DOWNSPOUTS AS REQUIRED

FULLY ADHERED MEMBRAN ROOF BEYOND

LOW DECK BRG.

121' - 0"

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

T.O. PRECAST

123' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING

97' - 0"

4'-0" 12'-0" 4'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 4'-0" 12'-0" 4'-0"PREFINISHED METAL CAP (TYPICAL)

INSULATED PRECAST PANEL WALLS
(PAINTED), IN WIDTHS AS DIMENSIONED
& W/ 1/2" DEEP x 2" WIDE REVEALS AS SHOWN

ROD SUSPENDED FLAT
ROOF CANOPY W/ PREFIN.
HEAVY GA. MTL. FLASHING, 
FASCIA & SOFFIT

PREFIN. METAL SILL FLASHING
(DARK BRONZE)

NOTE:

ALL ALUM. STOREFRONT DOORS &
WINDOWS TO BE DARK BRONZE
ANODIZED W/ CLEAR GLASS

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

1

A3.0

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

DECK BRG.

122' - 0"

100'-0"

PR
EC

AS
T 

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
 =

 2
4'

-0
"

24
'-0

"

WALL PACK WALL PACK

(3) RECESSED CAN LTS.

10
'-0

"
1'

-0
"

2'
-2

"
5'

-0
"

2'
-1

0"

2'
-2

"
5'

-0
"

2'
-1

0"

10
'-0

"

10
'-0

"

4'-0"

10
'-0

"
1'

-0
"

INSULATED PRECAST PENEL WALLS
(PAINTED), IN WIDTHS AS DIMENSIONED
AND W/ 1/2" D. x 2" W. REVEALS AS SHOWN

ROD-SUSPENDED FLAT ROOF CANOPY
W/ PREFINISHED HEAVY GA. METAL
FLASHING, FASCIA & SOFFIT

PREFINISHED METAL CAP (TYPICAL)

 1'-0" 1'-0"

LOW DECK BRG.

121' - 0"

DOOR & WINDOW VALUES
WINDOWS: U VALUE 0.--

SHGC 0.--
VT 0.--

DOORS: U VALUE 0.37

O.H. DOORS: U VALUE 0.38

DOORS: U VALUE 0.--
SHGC 0.--
VT 0.--

(>50% GLAZING)

(SWINGING)

(NON-SWINGING)

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A2.0
04.04.2023

L. SEBALD

C. MANSKE

J.R.S.

-------

-------

P23076

-------

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

C
A

L
E

D
O

N
IA

,

R
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
S

3/16" = 1'-0"
EAST ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"
WEST ELEVATION

1 04.24.2023 J.R.S.
2 05.15.2023 J.R.S.
3 09.05.2023 J.R.S.
4 04.09.2024 J.R.S.
5 05.14.2024 J.R.S.
6



FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

T.O. PRECAST

123' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING

97' - 0"

1'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

1'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

1'
-0

"

PREFIN. METAL SILL FLASHING
(DARK BRONZE)

NOTE:

ALL ALUM. STOREFRONT DOORS &
WINDOWS TO BE DARK BRONZE
ANODIZED W/ CLEAR GLASS

ROD SUPPORTED FLAT ROOF CANOPY
W/ PREFIN. HEAVY GA. MTL FLASHING
FASCIA & SOFFIT

2

A3.0

3'-0"3'-0"3'-0"3'-0"

12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0"

100'-0"

DECK BRG.

122' - 0"

INSULATED PRECAST PENEL WALLS
(PAINTED), IN WIDTHS AS DIMENSIONED
AND W/ 1/2" D. x 2" W. REVEALS AS SHOWN

ROD-SUSPENDED FLAT ROOF CANOPY
W/ PREFINISHED HEAVY GA. METAL
FLASHING, FASCIA & SOFFIT

PREFINISHED METAL CAP (TYPICAL)

PR
EC

AS
T 

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
 =

 2
4'

-0
"

24
'-0

"

2'
-1

0"
5'

-0
"

2'
-2

"

10
'-0

"

1'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

4'-0"

10
'-0

"

2'
-1

0"
5'

-0
"

2'
-2

"

WALL PACK WALL PACK

LOW DECK BRG.

121' - 0"

PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUTS AS REQUIRED

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

T.O. PRECAST

123' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING

97' - 0"

1'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

24
'-0

"

4'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0" 16'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0" 12'-0"

100'-0"

5" PRE-FINISHED METAL CAP

INSULATED PRECAST
PANEL WALLS (PAINTED).
IN WIDTHS AS DIMENSIONED
& W/ 1/2" DEEP x 2" WIDE
REVEALS AS SHOWN

FLAT ROOF CANOPY W/
PREFIN. HEAVY GA. MTL.
FLASHING, FASCIA &
SOFFIT

PREFIN. METAL SILL FLASHING
(DARK BRONZE)

NOTE:

ALL ALUM. STOREFRONT DOORS &
WINDOWS TO BE DARK BRONZE
ANODIZED W/ CLEAR GLASS

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
118C

9'x10' GLASS O.H.D.
102A

PR
EC

AS
T 

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
 =

 2
4'

-0
"

2

A3.0

7'
-2

"

3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0"

DECK BRG.

122' - 0"

10
'-0

"

2'
-2

"
5'

-0
"

2'
-1

0"

10
'-0

"

16'-0" x 16'-0" O.H.D.
118D

WALL PACK WALL PACK WALL PACK

10
'-0

"
1'

-0
"

4'-0"

LOW DECK BRG.

121' - 0"

PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUTS AS REQUIRED

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A2.1
04.04.2023

L. SEBALD

C. MANSKE

J.R.S.

-------

-------

P23076

-------

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

C
A

L
E

D
O

N
IA

,

R
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
S

1 04.24.2023 J.R.S.
2 05.15.2023 J.R.S.
3 09.05.2023 J.R.S.
4 04.09.2024 J.R.S.
5 05.14.2024 J.R.S.
6

3/16" = 1'-0"
SOUTH ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"
NORTH ELEVATION



WISCONSIN
CONCEPT ONLYCALEDONIA,

RIGHT TRAILERS



WISCONSIN
CONCEPT ONLYCALEDONIA,

RIGHT TRAILERS























P a g e  1 | 2 
P:\NOTICES-AGENDAS\PLANNING\2024\Items for current meeting\6-17-2024 Memorandum.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  June 17, 2024  
 
To:  Plan Commission 

Village Board 
 
From:  Ryan Schmidt, P.E. 
  Village Engineer 
 
Re:  Certified Survey Map – 7 Mile Road 

Parcel ID 51-104-04-22-08-005-000 
Part of the NE ¼ of Section 8, Township 4 North, Range 22 East 
Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI 
Applicant – Ken Rusch | Owner – Paul K. Thomas & Hasan S Salem 

 
Recommended Motions: 

1. Move to recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map subject to the 4 
conditions listed in the Village Engineer’s Memo dated June 17, 2024. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
The Engineering Department has received a Certified Survey Map (CSM) from Ken Rusch, 
the agent and attorney for Hasan Salem. The CSM is for the property located at 
approximately 1500 feet west of STH 38 on the south side of 7 Mile Road in the Village of 
Caledonia. The existing property is approximately 20.11 acres in size. There is also 496.89 
feet of frontage along 7 Mile Road. The existing parcel contains only farmland with a 
drainage channel cutting through the property. The property is co-owned by both Hasan 
Salem and Paul K. Thomas. The Concept was brought to the Planning Commission for 
approval on October 30, 2023. The Concept, including waiver for 2.5:1 lots, was approved 
at that time. 
 
The property currently has an A-2 Agricultural Zoning Classification.  A-2 Zoning in an 
unsewered district requires 150 feet of frontage and a 5-acre minimum lot size.  The A-2 
Zoning contains a 75’ street yard setback along with 25’ side and rear yard setbacks. These 
must be listed and shown graphically on the Final CSM.  The Concept CSM meets and/or 
exceeds these requirements with the proposed 5-acre minimums and > than 200’ frontage.  
The Village’s 2035 Land Use Plan shows that the recommended use for the land as 
Agricultural, Rural Residential and Open Land. All Lots on the CSM will meet the Zoning 
and Comprehensive Land Use Plan requirements. The setbacks for the zoning shall be 
shown graphically and listed in writing on the CSM before recording. 
 
This final CSM is for the creation of 2 lots on the parcel. It is proposed that lots 1 and 2 will 
be divided nearly equally on the parcel to create equal 9.802-acre parcels.  The previous 



P a g e  2 | 2 
P:\NOTICES-AGENDAS\PLANNING\2024\Items for current meeting\6-17-2024 Memorandum.docx 

memorandum and Concept CSM included 16 conditions for approval. Many of those 
conditions have been addressed including wetland delineation, Right-of-Way dedication, 
drainage easements, soil borings, and more.  
 
It is recommended that the drainage easements are provided over the as-built centerline of 
any channels that may exist on the site. The information provided for the channel initially 
was represented via imagery and should be verified with a field survey as necessary.  If, 
during the development of any dwellings it is determined that it was incorrectly located, 
the owners of the lots shall submit an affidavit of correction for the modification of the 
easement on the parcels. 
 
Access to the site has been requested for both newly created parcels. A waiver request for 
multiple access points on a primary thoroughfare will be presented to the Committee of 
the Whole and the Village Board concurrent with the approval of the CSM. Any new access 
will require Village Permits for Right-of-Way access and should be located at a point that 
meets all site distance requirements, Village driveway and culvert requirements, and is 
safe for the traveling public. Should the Village Board not be in favor of a second access, a 
shared access agreement for both lots will be required and the CSM will need to include 
this information prior to recording. In both situations, the existing farm access should be 
removed and relocated to ultimately serve the properties within the limits of the parcels.  
 
Staff has reviewed the Certified Survey Map and recommends approval subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The Final CSM is submitted and recorded within 1 year of approval by the 
Village Board. 

2. The Village of Caledonia zoning setbacks are shown on the CSM both 
graphically and listed in writing.  

3. The Village Board either approves individual access for each property or a 
shared access is provided with cross access and maintenance agreements 
executed and shown graphically on the CSM prior to recording.  

4. The drainage easements are verified as being centered on the in-situ drainage 
swale.  

 
 

 















P a g e  1 | 1 
\\voc-file01\Common\NOTICES-AGENDAS\PLANNING\2024\Items for current meeting\Item 6B - Revised South Hills CSM Memo.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  June 18, 2024  
 
To:  Plan Commission 

Village Board 
 
From:  Ryan Schmidt, P.E. 
  Village Engineer 
 
Re: Certified Survey Map – Golf Road & USH 41 E. Frontage Road – Modified 

Conditions of Approval 
Parcel ID’s 51-104-04-22-31-023-000, 104-04-22-31-022-000, 104-04-22-31- 
024-000, and 104-04-22-31-008-000  
Applicant - Ashley Ventures, LLC  
Owner – Hintz Real Estate Development Company, LLC 
 

Recommended Motions: 
1. Move to recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map combining lots 104-

04-22- 31-023-000, 104-04-22-31-022-000, 104-04-22-31-024-000, and 104-04-22-
31-008-000 subject to the Conditions 1-5 listed in the Village Engineers Memo 
dated 4-17-2024 and amending Condition 6 to be as follows: 

a. A 12’ Slope Easement is to be provided along the 33’ Right-of-Way 
Dedication along Golf Road. A separate exhibit with legal description shall 
be provided prior to the recording of the CSM.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
Ashley Ventures LLC proposed a CSM to combine the 4 lots around and including the South 
Hills Golf Course as described in the Village Engineer’s Memo dated 4-17-2024. This CSM 
was approved at both the Plan Commission meeting on April 29, 2024 and the Village Board 
Meeting on May 14, 2024. After additional discussions with the developer, it was determined 
that Condition 6 of the memo could be modified to include a 12’ Slope Easement rather than 
additional Right-of-Way.  Resolution 2024-057 and supporting documents (CSM and Village 
Engineer Memo) has been included as Exhibit A.  
 
Staff has reviewed this request and believe this to be an acceptable modification to have an 
area dedicated to the Village to ensure appropriate slopes can be maintained adjacent to its 
ROW along Golf Road. Any future reconstruction or modification to Golf Road can then 
utilize the 33’ of Right-of-Way and the Slope Easement as necessary. The Developer shall 
include a 12’ slope easement on the CSM in addition to the 33’ ROW dedication and provide 
a dedicated legal description and exhibit prior to recording the CSM.  

 





















 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024     

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 6c  

Proposal: Cooperative Boundary Agreement Review  

Description: Review a building, site, and operation plan for the construction and utilization of a ±4,875 
square-foot addition to the existing commercial building located at 3039 W. 6 ½ Mile Road 
in the Village of Raymond. 
 

Applicant(s): Sukhi Singh 

Address(es): 3039 W.  6 ½ Mile Road 

Suggested 
Motion: 

That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that the building, site, and 
operation plan for the construction of a ±4,875 square-foot addition located at 3039 W. 6 
½ Mile Road in the Village of Raymond be approved for the following reasons: 

1. The Village of Raymond Plan Commission and Village Board granted approval of 
the proposed building, site, and operation plan. 

2. The proposed use meets the intent of the Village of Caledonia development 
standards and find that the proposed use is a spectacular use for this parcel without 
connecting to sewer and water in accordance with the Cooperative Boundary 
Agreement between the Villages of Caledonia and Raymond. 

Owner(s): Musafar Group LLC 

Tax Key(s): 168-04-21-12-038-030 

Lot Size(s): 19.14 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):  B-5, Highway Business District   

   

Overlay District(s): N/A 
  

  
  

  
  

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Recreational  

Background: The applicant is requesting approval of the construction and utilization of a ±4,875 square-
foot addition located at 3039 W. 6 ½ Mile Road. As part of the Cooperative Boundary Agreement, the 
Village of Caledonia has the authority to review and approve proposed CSMs, rezones, variances, plats, 
land use amendments, site plans, and conditional uses.  
 
In 2019. The Village of Caledonia approved the original building, site, and operation plan for the 
construction of a ±5,260 commercial building. Enclosed is the staff report evaluating the original building. 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 6c 

Page 2 of 2 
 

The proposed expansion has received approvals from both the Plan Commission and Village Board of 
Raymond in May 2024. 
 
The proposed addition is similar in design and looks like the original building. The addition will be located 
on the western elevation of the existing building and extend approximately 65 feet. The primary exterior 
material is metal siding with accent materials such as glass and 4-inch masonry (brick) veneer along the 
base of the building. In 2019, metal siding was an acceptable primary exterior material.  Starting in the fall 
of 2022, the use of metal siding or panels as a primary exterior material requires a ¾ majority approval. 
The Village has, in the past, approved the use of metal siding as a primary exterior material when existing 
buildings used the same material. To ensure the addition blends into the existing building, staff 
recommends approval of the use of the same materials as were used in 2019. 
 
There is no proposed lighting, or additional landscaping proposed as part of this expansion as the building 
will be constructed on existing impervious surface and surrounding greenspace and landscaping will not 
be removed as part of the project.  
 
There is one design element of the building that doesn’t conform to the standard in Exhibit K. This element 
is the installation of four overhead doors on the west elevation with no proposed screening from the right-
of-way. Because the expansion of the building is to the west, the building expansion will be very close to 
the access drive. This makes it difficult to screen the overhead doors from the public right-of-way and 
preserve the vision triangle needed to safely enter and exit the site. The design guidelines in Exhibit K 
state that overhead doors shall be screened or designed with a high degree of visual appeal and that the 
overhead doors should be screened using various screening elements that should be at least seven feet 
high. Vegetation exists along the north side of the site, but the addition’s proximity to the access drive 
makes it difficult to screen from the road at the required height. Staff is not recommending additional 
screening along 6 ½ Mile Road. 
 
The main purpose of the boundary agreement is to ensure consistent design and appearance along the 
I-94 corridor between the two villages. In this case, the building cannot be seen from the interstate and 
the overhead doors on the west elevation will not be seen either. The Village of Raymond has determined 
that the proposed location of overhead doors on the west elevation of the building is acceptable. Staff 
recommends allowing the overhead doors as presented as it does not directly face the road and cannot 
be seen from the interstate.  
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed addition, staff drafted a suggested motion to 
approve the building, site, and operation plan the proposed addition located at 3039 W 6 ½ Mile Road. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Peter Wagner, AICP 
Development Director 

 
 
 

 
 





EXHIBIT K: DESIGN STANDARDS

The requirements of Title 16 of the Village of Caledonia Code of Ordinances shall apply, as modified by the categories below, in the Raymond Plan Area.

CATEGORY 1 - JOINT REGULATIONS WITHIN THE RAYMOND PLAN AREA

1 Loading dock and 
shipping/receiving area 
requirements/screening       
(16-3-2 (c) (8))

Garage doors, loading areas, service entries and areas, and mechanical equipment shall be screened or designed with a high degree of visual 
appeal. This treatment can minimize the negative visual impact such necessary functions have and can help enhance and define adjacent spaces. 
Various techniques should be used to completely screen views into these areas. Densely planted trees, shrubs, opaque fencing, and/or garden 
walls should be used to screen service areas, loading areas, trash receptacles and ground-floor mechanicals. These elements should be at least 
seven (7) feet high (plant material should be at least seven (7) feet within 2 years of planting). 

2 Street edge landscaping        
(16-3-3 (b) (1))

Trees no more than 50’ on center of the tree trunk. Trees shall be planted parallel to the right-of-way. Trees shall be canopy, deciduous trees from 
the Village Street Tree List. Trees bordering a parcel shall be of the same species in order to provide visual continuity along the street edge. In 
addition to rhythmic planting of trees, a secondary landscape layer located behind the tree line should be created using ornamental fences and 
continuous evergreen hedges that block views of parking areas. Unless otherwise noted these should have a minimum height of 4’ above the 
elevation at the right-of-way. Berms should not be used as a device for visual screening unless specific approval is given by the Village Board. 
When berms are approved for use, they shall have a minimal slope in contrast to the surrounding landscape. When a berm is intended to screen a 
building from a public right-of-way, the berm must be configured so that the building is screened at all visual angles from the public right-of-way. 
Trees, fences, and hedges may be eliminated when there is a planned view of an open landscaped area included as part of a long-term open 
space management plan.

3 Encourage four-sided 
architecture

Four-sided architecture, which utilizes similar building materials and design for all sides of a proposed structure, is encouraged. 

4 Roof style/material  
recommendations

Pitched roofs such as hip, gambrel, gable, etc. should be required; utilizing cedar, architectural asphalt or dimensional shingles is preferred.  Metal 
roofs should be considered only where they complement the residential character of the proposed architecture. The use of raised steel seamed 
panels or other similar materials is generally discouraged and is subject to review and approval of the Plan Commission.  

5 Screening rooftop 
mechanicals

Roof top mechanical installations should be screened so as to block the view from adjacent streets and properties. Screening should match or 
complement the overall theme of the building. All screening is subject to review and approval by the Plan Commission. 

6 Building massing, height, and 
form                                       
(16-3-2 (c) (3))

Buildings shall be comprised of a visually distinct base, middle and top. Buildings shall not exceed two (2) stories except as noted in the standards 
for specific types of places or as may be allowed for by a conditional use or in a planned unit development. This provides a flexible method of 
relating the building to the pedestrian (base), to the surrounding architecture (middle), and the opportunity for unique identity where the building 
meets the sky (top). Expression of the elements should be handled through changes in plane and material, horizontal bands, cornices, and/or 
varied window openings. Large buildings should be comprised of a series of masses and forms to give the building hierarchy, scale and visual 
richness. Building massing and components should demonstrate consistent proportional harmonies as indicated in the guideline illustrations.

7 Signage                   
(excluding freeway signage)    
(16-3-5; 16-7)

Signage shall consist of both freestanding and building signs. Freestanding signage should be of the following types: agriculture, directional, 
freeway, home occupation, monument, subdivision, off-premises, private property, street banner, governmental, recreational, trail, or temporary.  
Building signage should be of the following types: awning or canopy, projecting, wall, or window.  Prohibited signs include beacons, streamers, 
pennants, pinwheels, and strings of lights not permanently mounted to a rigid background, and inflatable signs, tethered balloons, and signs affixed 
to a cart, trailer or other rolling mechanism, unless specifically permitted as a temporary sign but not to exceed 30 days of use in each calendar 
year.  Prohibited signs also include signs that revolve, are animated, have moving parts, or are illuminated by flashing or moving lights.  Billboards 
and pole signs where the bottom of the sign is more than 11 feet from grade, and roof signs that are separated from the rest of the roof by more 
than 12 inches are also prohibited.

8 Freeway Signage                     
(16-3-5)

Freeway signage shall be defined as a freestanding sign within one-hundred fifty (150) feet of the Interstate 94 right-of-way.  The road side edge of 
such sign should be located as close to the interstate right-of-way as feasible, but shall maintain a minimum of five (5) feet from the public right-of-
way.  Freeway signs shall be constructed as set forth in the accompanying Freeway Sign Diagram.

9 Appropriate building materials 
(16-3-2 (c) (4))

The primary facade and sides of the building visible from the public space, public parking, walkways, and rights-of-way shall be clad in finish grade 
materials unless otherwise allowed under a conditional use or planned unit development. Glass, brick, stone, wood, and decorative block are 
examples of finish grade materials that are appropriate for use on visible facades. The rear or side of the building shall use the same materials.

10 Building placement guidelines 
(16-3-2 (c) (2))

Modified from current regulation: Building facades shall be parallel or perpendicular to the right-of-way (or parallel or perpendicular to the tangent 
to curve taken at the midpoint) 

11 Preserve existing tree 
lines/Open space, natural 
resource protection

Landscaping for development sites should be designed to complement the built and natural environment of the subject project and adjacent sites. 
Existing tree lines should be preserved. If removal of existing tree line is required due to its undesirable nature, new plantings that result in no less 
of a screening effect shall be required when adjacent to residential uses.  Tree species that are native to Wisconsin and the Town of Raymond are 
encouraged. 

12 Lighting specifications All off-street lighting shall be down-cast, cutoff fixtures with a zero-degree tilt. The total height of fixtures, measured from grade to the highest point 
of the pole and/or lamp, should be no more than 15 to 20 feet. The base should be no greater than 6” above grade. Low pressure sodium bulbs 
are strongly discouraged. 

13 Lighting position 
specifications

Lighting should be positioned so as not to cause glare on adjacent properties and streets. A maximum of 0.5 foot candles of light at the property 
line should be permitted. Require the submittal of a photometric site plan which illustrates the amount of light, measured in foot candles.  No 
lighting should be permitted to exceed 12 foot candles. Consider exceptions to the height of lighting fixtures, provided that the total fixture height is 
equal or less than the height of adjacent building eaves. 

14 Color guidelines The coloring of all brick, decorative masonry, or stone shall be expressed as integral to the product and not painted on the surface of the product.  
Neutral colors are preferred over primary colors.

The following regulations are intended to ensure that the appearance of new commercial buildings, landscapes, and signage elements in the 
Raymond Plan Area match the corresponding elements in the Village of Caledonia.
Guidelines to be based on Caledonia standards

Guidelines to be based on Raymond standards



EXHIBIT K: DESIGN STANDARDS

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Screening adjacent residential neighborhoods

Traffic calming

Vehicular cross access between non-residential sites

Vehicle entry specifications

Sign landscaping specifications

Site planning for future use / redevelopment

Size specifications for landscaping

Sod installation for yards on public rights-of-way

Outbuilding location specifications

Outbuilding style / material specifications

Outdoor events / displays / art

Pedestrian access to parking lots

Foundation plantings for primary structures

Glazing

Impermeable surface ratios

Non-motorized access/trails/connections to adjacent development

Access drive locations

Additional façade features

Encourage multiple uses for outdoor areas

Entrance features

The Town should develop, review, and apply these guidelines independently of Caledonia anywhere within the Raymond Plan Area.

CATEGORY 2 - REGULATIONS IN RAYMOND THAT ARE ENCOURAGED BUT NOT NEEDING SPECIFIC 

CORRESPONDENCE WITH CALEDONIA





Staff Review
TO:  Village of Caledonia Planning Commission

CC:  Peter Wagner, Elaine Ekes, Jarmen Czuta, Tim Barbeau

FROM:  Orrin Sumwalt, AICP

RPT DATE: September 24, 2019

MTG DATE: September 30, 2019

RE: Akal Trucking – Town of Raymond Coop Boundary Request

BACKGROUND:
1. Petitioner: Sukhjinder Singh, Musafar Group, LLC

2. Agent: Scott Maier, Ayres Associates

3. Property Owner: Musafar Group, LLC

4. Parcel ID Number: 012-04-21-12-038-030

5. Address of Petitioned Parcel: ~ 3015 W. 6 ½ Mile Road

6. Area: 19.14 acres

7. Existing Zoning: B-5 Highway Business District

8. Existing Land Use: Recreational

BACKGROUND:
The subject property is located at approximately 3015 W. 6 ½ Mile Road (west of the Hitters Baseball facility)
and is currently vacant.  The proposal is to construct a ± 5,260 square-foot commercial building for the servicing of
semi-tractors and trailers for a trucking company business use and associated semi-tractor and trailer parking. The
proposed use is allowed within the underlying B-5 Highway Business District as a conditional use. The Raymond
Village Board approved the proposed use at their meeting on Monday, September 24.

PLANNER COMMENTS:
A submittal is attached showing the proposed site plan, building elevations, grading plan and landscape plan. The
new building is proposed to be located in the northeast portion of the site.  Semi-tractors and trailers will be parked
on the west side of the property on a gravel lot. The applicant is also proposing a small truck turnaround area on the
south end of the project area, which could also be used for drivers to park their personal vehicles. Proposed
landscaping consists of four canopy trees along the road frontage on the east side of the driveway and turf in certain
areas.  All of the parking areas, and the access areas on the west and south sides of the building are proposed to be
gravel, except for the driveway and one accessible parking space, which would be paved with heavy duty concrete.
The applicant is proposing to construct the building of prefinished steel siding with a masonry band along the base,
aluminum storefront windows and a flat roof.  The applicant has provided an artists’ rendering depicting the
proposed colors for the exterior materials. An office area is located on the east side of the structure with windows
and an access door on the south elevation and a service bay is located on the west side of the building.  Overhead
doors are only found on the south elevation which faces away from the roadway and public view.

The proposal is in front of the Village Planning Commission and Board to determine approval and possible
contingencies according to the Cooperative Boundary Agreement between the Village of Raymond and the Village of
Caledonia.

The following Caledonia/Raymond design guidelines apply to the newly proposed structure:

Lincoln Center II • 2514 South 102nd Street, Suite 278 • West Allis, WI 53227 • (414) 336-7900 • Fax: (414) 336-7901
- 1 -



Staff Review
four-feet to increase the percentage of this finish material on the building. In addition, the west
elevation would benefit from the addition of windows (similar to the north elevation of the service
bay), which would help break up this elevation.

8. Building Placement – Requires building facades to be parallel or perpendicular to the right-of-way.
a. The proposed new building is perpendicular to the 6 ½ Mile Road right-of-way.

9. Lighting Specifications – Lighting should be proposed at a maximum 0.5 foot-candles at property lines and
no lights should exceed 12 foot-candles. Pole lights should be 15-20 feet maximum. All off-street lighting
should be down-cast, cutoff fixtures with zero-degree tilt.

a. No lighting plans have been provided. The contingencies noted for lighting above will be required
at time of building permit approvals.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Overall, staff recommends approval of the new structure and site plan subject to the contingencies below along with
any Plan Commission added items.

Suggested Motion:

The Plan Commission recommends the Village Board approve the conditional use, site, building, and landscape 
plans for theapproximately 5,260 square-foot commercial building located upon property bearing Parcel ID No. 012-04-21-12-
038-030 with conditions 1-7 outlined in the staff report dated September 24, 2019.

1. All rooftop mechanicals shall be screened upon construction with similar architectural materials found on
the principal structure.

2. Any required ground mechanical equipment, misc. outdoor storage, or refuse containers shall be screened
by landscaping or fencing.

3. The landscape plan shall be updated to include the addition of dense plantings (primarily evergreen trees)
along the street frontage on the west side of the driveway to screen the semi-tractors and trailers from the
view of the roadway, the addition of five (5) shrubs per 50-feet along the entire road frontage, and a three-
foot wide foundation planting bed along the north elevation of the building. A revised Landscape Plan shall
be submitted to the Village for review and approval by the Development Director, prior to issuance of a
Building Permit.

4. The employee/patron parking lot on the west side of the proposed building and the access drive from W. 6
½ Mile Road shall be paved (concrete or asphalt). A revised Paving Plan shall be submitted to the Village for
review and approval by the Development Director, prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

5. The width of the masonry band around the base of the building shall be increased to four feet, and windows
consistent with the design and spacing of the windows on the north elevation of the service bay, shall be
added to the west elevation to break up the plane of this wall. Revised Architectural Elevations shall be
submitted to the Village for review and approval by the Development Director, prior to issuance of a
Building Permit.

6. Any outdoor lighting shall be down-cast, full cut-off fixtures. Any pole lights shall not exceed 20 feet and
shall have a concrete base of no more than 6” above ground.  Lights should produce no more than 0.5 foot
candles at the property line with no lighting to exceed 12 foot candles. A Lighting Plan shall be submitted to
the Village for review and approval by the Development Director, prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

7. The proposed use meets the intent of the Village of Caledonia development standards and we find that the
proposed use is a spectacular use for this parcel to be allowed to proceed without connecting to sewer and
water in accordance with the Cooperative Plan between Caledonia and Raymond.

Lincoln Center II • 2514 South 102nd Street, Suite 278 • West Allis, WI 53227 • (414) 336-7900 • Fax: (414) 336-7901
- 3 -





















 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024     

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 6d  

Proposal: Cooperative Boundary Agreement Review  

Description: Review a rezoning of a parcel from B-3, Commercial Service District and M-3, Heavy 
Industrial District to B-5, Highway Business District; a request for a conditional use permit 
allowing the operation of truck transportation businesses with outdoor parking of semi 
tractors with trailers; a building, site, and operation plan for the construction and utilization 
of two ±4,920 square-foot buildings and expanded parking located at 405 27th Street in the 
Village of Raymond. 
 

Applicant(s): Predrag Maric 

Address(es): 405 27th Street 

Suggested 
Motion: 

That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that the rezoning, conditional 
use, and building, site, and operation plan for the operation of a truck transportation 
business and the construction of two ±4,920 square-foot buildings and expanded parking 
lot located at 405 27th Street in the Village of Raymond be approved for the following 
reasons: 

1. The Village of Raymond Plan Commission and Village Board granted approval of 
the rezoning, conditional use, and building, site, and operation plan. 

2. The proposed use meets the intent of the Village of Caledonia development 
standards and find that the proposed use is a spectacular use for this parcel without 
connecting to sewer and water in accordance with the Cooperative Boundary 
Agreement between the Villages of Caledonia and Raymond. 

Owner(s): Maric Investments LLC 

Tax Key(s): 168-04-21-01-005-000 

Lot Size(s): 10.25 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):  B-3, Commercial Service District and M-3, Heavy Industrial District   

   

Overlay District(s): N/A 
  

  
  

  
  

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Business Park 

 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
Item No.: 6d 

Page 2 of 4 

Background:  The applicant is requesting multiple approvals regarding the expansion of business 
operations at 405 27th Street in the Village of Raymond. The applicant has received approvals for the 
rezone, conditional use, and building, site, and operation plan from the Village of Raymond. 

These proposals are being reviewed by the Village of Caledonia as part of the Cooperative Boundary 
Agreement between the two municipalities that was adopted in 2009. Public hearings related to rezoning 
and conditional uses do not apply when reviewing another municipality’s development project.  

The intent of the Boundary Agreement is to ensure that development occurring along both sides of the 
Interstate has a consistent and high-quality appearance. The following is a review of three individual 
reviews: rezone, conditional use, and site plan.  It is the Plan Commission’s discretion to determine 
whether the proposed development meets the standards outlined in the Cooperative Boundary Agreement 
and whether the proposed development is to be considered a “spectacular” development. Other elements 
of the project are solely reviewed by the Village of Raymond and not the Village of Caledonia. Examples 
of a development element include a grading plan, stormwater management plan, and compliance with fire 
code.  

REZONING 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning of the property from B-3, Commercial Service District and M-3, 
Heavy Industrial District to the B-5, Highway Business District to accommodate for the use of the site as 
a truck transportation business with outdoor parking of semi-tractors with trailers which is conditional use 
in the B-5 District. 

Parcels to the south are currently zoned B-5, and parcels to the north are zoned M-3 and B-5. The rezone 
request is consistent with the Raymond’s Land Use Map identifying the property as future commercial 
use.  Due to the proximity of the parcel to the Interstate, rezoning the parcel to B-5, Highway Business is 
appropriate and is compatible with abutting land uses. Furthermore, the rezone will make the entire 
parcel the same zoning classification which will provide less confusion as to what is a permitted use 
on the site.  The rezone will also provide the basis for the requested conditional use for the 
operation of a truck transportation business to operate on the property.  

CONDITOINAL USE 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for the operation of a truck transportation 
business on the property. The FOTH report details the proposed operations and conditions of approval. 
Staff has reviewed the conditions of approval and have no concerns. The parking of semis will be limited 
to the western portion of the property and cannot be easily seen from the freeway. The addition of two 
commercial buildings will further screen the parking area at the rear of the property. The proposed use is 
compatible with the existing abutting uses and should not negatively impact neighboring properties. The 
proximity to the interstate provides direct access from the property to the interstate, minimizing the impact 
on municipal roads. 

BUILDING, SITE, AND OPERATION PLAN 
Site plan reviews for projects located in the Village of Raymond are not reviewed the same way as in the 
Village of Caledonia. Caledonia’s review focuses on compliance with Caledonia Standards in Exhibit K of 
the Cooperative Boundary Agreement and determines if the site is “spectacular” as not to require water 
and sewer to proceed. As stated earlier in this report, the purpose of the review is to ensure high quality 
in appearance. 

The site has three existing buildings and a gravel parking lot on the western portion of the property. The 
applicant is requesting to expand the parking lot on the west and to construct two ±4,920 square-foot 
commercial buildings on the south of the property.  



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 6d 

Page 3 of 4 
 

The proposed parking lot expansion complies with setback requirements and does require interior 
landscape islands. The applicant will be illuminating the parking lot, however, per the agreement the 
Village of Raymond will determine if the design standard is met. Overall, the proposed parking lot conforms 
with standards outlined in Exhibit K. 
 
Exhibit K Guidelines: 
1. Loading Docks/Mechanicals/Shipping Areas Screening & Appearance – Requires overhead 
door/receiving areas to be screened or designed with high degree of visual appeal. Screening can be 
completed with fencing, topography, and/or landscaping. 

• There are multiple overhead doors proposed on the north elevation of both buildings which is 
interior to the site. The setback of the building should mitigate the visual impact from the frontage 
road. 

 
2. Street Edge Landscaping Required – Requires Street frontage landscaping with trees 50’ on center 
minimum and/or berms for screening. 

• Landscaping is proposed along the west elevation of the proposed building closest to the frontage 
road consisting of shrubs and three trees. In addition, the applicant will be adding shrubs and a 
turf area to the south of the existing commercial buildings so help soften the view heading to the 
parking lot to the west. 

 
3. Four-Sided Architecture Required – Requires similar architecture and use of materials throughout all 
facades of a proposed structure. 

• The proposed buildings will use the same exterior materials on all four sides of the building.  
 
4. Roof Style/Materials – Requires hip, gambrel, gable roofs utilizing cedar, asphalt, or dimensional 
shingles unless metal roofs compliment neighborhood character of area. 

• A pitched roof is being proposed for the building constructed of steel. Buildings in the surrounding 
area are constructed of steel. 

 
5. Rooftop Mechanicals Screening– Requires all future rooftop mechanicals to be screened with similar 
architectural materials. 

• No rooftop mechanicals are currently shown. If there are rooftop mechanicals, the applicant will 
be required to screen from the roadway. 

 
6. Building Massing/Height/Form– Requires buildings to have distinct base, middle, top. 

• The use of windows and roof pitch creates the appearance of a base, middle, and top of the 
building. 

 
7. Appropriate Building Materials – Requires the primary façade be finish grade materials (glass, brick, 
stone, wood, or decorative block as examples). 

• The proposed building exterior consists primarily of metal siding with glass window accents. These 
buildings are accessory building used for service and repair. The primary building has brick and 
glass exterior materials. The Plan Commission can consider a development proposal on a case-
by-case basis and with a ¾ majority approval waive this standard. 

 
8. Building Placement Guidelines – Building facades shall be parallel or perpendicular to the right-of-way. 

• The placement of the building is parallel with the road. As these are accessory buildings, they do 
not have a storefront design on any elevation. The use of landscaping and windows breakup the 
the building elevation facing the roadway.  

 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 6d 

Page 4 of 4 
 

9. Signage – No signs are proposed as part of this development. 
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed development project, staff drafted a suggested 
motion approving the rezone, conditional use, and building, site, and operation plan the operation of a 
truck transportation business and the construction and utilization of two commercial buildings and 
expanded parking lot located at 405 27th Street, Village of Raymond. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Peter Wagner, AICP 
Development Director 

 
 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT K: DESIGN STANDARDS

The requirements of Title 16 of the Village of Caledonia Code of Ordinances shall apply, as modified by the categories below, in the Raymond Plan Area.

CATEGORY 1 - JOINT REGULATIONS WITHIN THE RAYMOND PLAN AREA

1 Loading dock and 
shipping/receiving area 
requirements/screening       
(16-3-2 (c) (8))

Garage doors, loading areas, service entries and areas, and mechanical equipment shall be screened or designed with a high degree of visual 
appeal. This treatment can minimize the negative visual impact such necessary functions have and can help enhance and define adjacent spaces. 
Various techniques should be used to completely screen views into these areas. Densely planted trees, shrubs, opaque fencing, and/or garden 
walls should be used to screen service areas, loading areas, trash receptacles and ground-floor mechanicals. These elements should be at least 
seven (7) feet high (plant material should be at least seven (7) feet within 2 years of planting). 

2 Street edge landscaping        
(16-3-3 (b) (1))

Trees no more than 50’ on center of the tree trunk. Trees shall be planted parallel to the right-of-way. Trees shall be canopy, deciduous trees from 
the Village Street Tree List. Trees bordering a parcel shall be of the same species in order to provide visual continuity along the street edge. In 
addition to rhythmic planting of trees, a secondary landscape layer located behind the tree line should be created using ornamental fences and 
continuous evergreen hedges that block views of parking areas. Unless otherwise noted these should have a minimum height of 4’ above the 
elevation at the right-of-way. Berms should not be used as a device for visual screening unless specific approval is given by the Village Board. 
When berms are approved for use, they shall have a minimal slope in contrast to the surrounding landscape. When a berm is intended to screen a 
building from a public right-of-way, the berm must be configured so that the building is screened at all visual angles from the public right-of-way. 
Trees, fences, and hedges may be eliminated when there is a planned view of an open landscaped area included as part of a long-term open 
space management plan.

3 Encourage four-sided 
architecture

Four-sided architecture, which utilizes similar building materials and design for all sides of a proposed structure, is encouraged. 

4 Roof style/material  
recommendations

Pitched roofs such as hip, gambrel, gable, etc. should be required; utilizing cedar, architectural asphalt or dimensional shingles is preferred.  Metal 
roofs should be considered only where they complement the residential character of the proposed architecture. The use of raised steel seamed 
panels or other similar materials is generally discouraged and is subject to review and approval of the Plan Commission.  

5 Screening rooftop 
mechanicals

Roof top mechanical installations should be screened so as to block the view from adjacent streets and properties. Screening should match or 
complement the overall theme of the building. All screening is subject to review and approval by the Plan Commission. 

6 Building massing, height, and 
form                                       
(16-3-2 (c) (3))

Buildings shall be comprised of a visually distinct base, middle and top. Buildings shall not exceed two (2) stories except as noted in the standards 
for specific types of places or as may be allowed for by a conditional use or in a planned unit development. This provides a flexible method of 
relating the building to the pedestrian (base), to the surrounding architecture (middle), and the opportunity for unique identity where the building 
meets the sky (top). Expression of the elements should be handled through changes in plane and material, horizontal bands, cornices, and/or 
varied window openings. Large buildings should be comprised of a series of masses and forms to give the building hierarchy, scale and visual 
richness. Building massing and components should demonstrate consistent proportional harmonies as indicated in the guideline illustrations.

7 Signage                   
(excluding freeway signage)    
(16-3-5; 16-7)

Signage shall consist of both freestanding and building signs. Freestanding signage should be of the following types: agriculture, directional, 
freeway, home occupation, monument, subdivision, off-premises, private property, street banner, governmental, recreational, trail, or temporary.  
Building signage should be of the following types: awning or canopy, projecting, wall, or window.  Prohibited signs include beacons, streamers, 
pennants, pinwheels, and strings of lights not permanently mounted to a rigid background, and inflatable signs, tethered balloons, and signs affixed 
to a cart, trailer or other rolling mechanism, unless specifically permitted as a temporary sign but not to exceed 30 days of use in each calendar 
year.  Prohibited signs also include signs that revolve, are animated, have moving parts, or are illuminated by flashing or moving lights.  Billboards 
and pole signs where the bottom of the sign is more than 11 feet from grade, and roof signs that are separated from the rest of the roof by more 
than 12 inches are also prohibited.

8 Freeway Signage                     
(16-3-5)

Freeway signage shall be defined as a freestanding sign within one-hundred fifty (150) feet of the Interstate 94 right-of-way.  The road side edge of 
such sign should be located as close to the interstate right-of-way as feasible, but shall maintain a minimum of five (5) feet from the public right-of-
way.  Freeway signs shall be constructed as set forth in the accompanying Freeway Sign Diagram.

9 Appropriate building materials 
(16-3-2 (c) (4))

The primary facade and sides of the building visible from the public space, public parking, walkways, and rights-of-way shall be clad in finish grade 
materials unless otherwise allowed under a conditional use or planned unit development. Glass, brick, stone, wood, and decorative block are 
examples of finish grade materials that are appropriate for use on visible facades. The rear or side of the building shall use the same materials.

10 Building placement guidelines 
(16-3-2 (c) (2))

Modified from current regulation: Building facades shall be parallel or perpendicular to the right-of-way (or parallel or perpendicular to the tangent 
to curve taken at the midpoint) 

11 Preserve existing tree 
lines/Open space, natural 
resource protection

Landscaping for development sites should be designed to complement the built and natural environment of the subject project and adjacent sites. 
Existing tree lines should be preserved. If removal of existing tree line is required due to its undesirable nature, new plantings that result in no less 
of a screening effect shall be required when adjacent to residential uses.  Tree species that are native to Wisconsin and the Town of Raymond are 
encouraged. 

12 Lighting specifications All off-street lighting shall be down-cast, cutoff fixtures with a zero-degree tilt. The total height of fixtures, measured from grade to the highest point 
of the pole and/or lamp, should be no more than 15 to 20 feet. The base should be no greater than 6” above grade. Low pressure sodium bulbs 
are strongly discouraged. 

13 Lighting position 
specifications

Lighting should be positioned so as not to cause glare on adjacent properties and streets. A maximum of 0.5 foot candles of light at the property 
line should be permitted. Require the submittal of a photometric site plan which illustrates the amount of light, measured in foot candles.  No 
lighting should be permitted to exceed 12 foot candles. Consider exceptions to the height of lighting fixtures, provided that the total fixture height is 
equal or less than the height of adjacent building eaves. 

14 Color guidelines The coloring of all brick, decorative masonry, or stone shall be expressed as integral to the product and not painted on the surface of the product.  
Neutral colors are preferred over primary colors.

The following regulations are intended to ensure that the appearance of new commercial buildings, landscapes, and signage elements in the 
Raymond Plan Area match the corresponding elements in the Village of Caledonia.
Guidelines to be based on Caledonia standards

Guidelines to be based on Raymond standards



EXHIBIT K: DESIGN STANDARDS

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Screening adjacent residential neighborhoods

Traffic calming

Vehicular cross access between non-residential sites

Vehicle entry specifications

Sign landscaping specifications

Site planning for future use / redevelopment

Size specifications for landscaping

Sod installation for yards on public rights-of-way

Outbuilding location specifications

Outbuilding style / material specifications

Outdoor events / displays / art

Pedestrian access to parking lots

Foundation plantings for primary structures

Glazing

Impermeable surface ratios

Non-motorized access/trails/connections to adjacent development

Access drive locations

Additional façade features

Encourage multiple uses for outdoor areas

Entrance features

The Town should develop, review, and apply these guidelines independently of Caledonia anywhere within the Raymond Plan Area.

CATEGORY 2 - REGULATIONS IN RAYMOND THAT ARE ENCOURAGED BUT NOT NEEDING SPECIFIC 

CORRESPONDENCE WITH CALEDONIA







  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 1 - 

Staff Review 

TO:  Village of Raymond Plan Commission 

FROM:  Ben Kohout, AICP – Foth  

RPT DATE: May 14, 2024  

MTG DATE: May 22, 2024 

RE: Maric Investments, LLC –   
Rezoning 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Request  
Site Plan/Plan of Operation 

BACKGROUND: 

1. Petitioner:  Predrag Maric (Maric Investments, LLC) 

2. Property Owner: Maric Investments, LLC 

3. Property Address: 405 27th Street 

4. Tax Parcel Number: 168-04-21-01-005-000  

5. Area: 10.25 Ac  

6. Existing Zoning: B-3 Commercial Service District and M-3 Heavy Industrial District 

7. Proposed Zoning: B-5 Highway Business District 

8. Existing Land Use: Business Park 

9. Proposed Land Use: NA 

BACKGROUND: 

On March 25, 2019, the Town Board approved a conditional use permit for Rick Zarate for car 
dealership sales and service, which included a gravel parking lot for approximately 300 vehicles to 
serve as overflow parking/storage for the Manheim Milwaukee auto auction in the rear (M-3) 
portion of the property. According to the property owner, sometime in 2022 Manheim moved out 
and Mr. Maric started parking his semi-trucks there. Mr. Maric had been parking his semi-trucks in 
the existing gravel lot in the rear (M-3) portion of the property without any approval from the Village. 
 
On December 19th, 2023, the Plan Commission directed the property owner to clean up the site (all 
semi-tractors and semi-trailers removed) and reapply for a Concept Plan once the violation has 
been remedied.  
 
On December 27, 2023, the Zoning Administrator mailed a Zoning Violation letter for failure to 
obtain or comply with a conditional use permit to Predrag Maric (Maric Investments, LLC) ordering 
the semi-tractors, semi-trailers and/or any other commercial equipment associated with the illegal 
business operations from the property at 405 27th Street within 30-days.   
 
On January 16, 2024, the Zoning Administrator conducted a site visit and found that all the semi-
tractors and semi-trailers were not removed from the gravel parking lot in the rear of the property. 
There were still six (6) parking spaces with vehicles parked in them on the property. Specifically, 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 2 - 

Staff Review 

vehicles were parked in stalls 27 (box truck), 43 (van and utility trailer), 44 (semi-tractor and trailer), 
45 (semi-trailer), 47 (SUV, semi-tractor and trailer), and 64 (semi-tractor). 
 
On January 25, 2024, Mr. Maric confirmed all the vehicles had been removed from the property.  
 
On January 26, 2024, the petitioner submitted a new Plan Commission Review Application for a 
Concept Plan, the application fee, and fourteen copies of their submittal materials. 

On February 26, 2024, during their review of Mr. Maric’s Concept Plan Application the Village Board 
agreed 50 trucks could be moved back to the property but that if nothing else was done within 
ninety (90) days the trucks would need to be removed again. Ninety (90) days from February 26, 
2024, is May 26, 2024.  

OVERVIEW: 

The petitioner is requesting approval of a rezoning, conditional use permit and approval of the 
associated site plan and plan of operation, grading plan and soil disturbance permit for two (2) 
approximately 4,920 sq. ft. buildings with office space and shop bays, and a parking lot expansion 
for a transportation hub for Mr. Maric’s three (3) transportation companies (Maric Transportation, 
Inc., PM Truck World, LLC, and Kalina Transportation, LLC) on property owned by Maric Investment, 
LLC and located at 405 27th Street (168-04-21-12-005-000).  
 
Mr. Maric’s transportation companies will occupy the west building for a truck terminal with office 
and shop space for truck repair. According to the petitioner, the intent is to lease the eastern 
proposed building to Direct Auto Sale (Car Dealership) for additional space. Staff anticipates the 
future tenant of the eastern proposed building will require a separate Site Plan/Plan of Operation 
and/or Conditional Use Pemit Amendment as applicable in addition to a Zoning Permit prior to 
taking occupancy of the building. The site plan includes: 
 

• Two (2) office/shop buildings (approximately 4,920 s.f. each) 

• 197 off-street parking stalls (including 30 standard parking stalls, one (1) ADA accessible 
stall, 97 semi-tractor/trailer stalls, and 69 semi-trailer stalls) 

• 24/7 access for semi-trucks 
• Security gate, fencing, and video monitoring 

• Proposed vehicular electrical plugin stations 
• Nineteen (19) proposed light poles  
• 103,078 s.f. of proposed additional parking lot area   

• 317,929 s.f. of impervious surface (pavement and gravel) or 87.55 % 

• 45,222 s.f. of green space  

• New concrete access drive and asphalt approach on 27th Street (West Frontage Road)  
 
The project narrative indicates Mr. Maric’s transportation companies would have regular business 
hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. However, Semi-truck drivers will have access to the secure parking 
lot at the rear of the property 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.  The petitioner anticipates 5 
employees at this time. According to the petitioner, they are currently working with WisDOT on 
access.  
 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 3 - 

Staff Review 

ENGINEER COMMENTS: 

Dan Snyder, P.E., Village Engineer has provided separate correspondence. 
 

PLANNER COMMENTS: 

1. Comprehensive Plan.  The property located at 405 27th Street has an existing land use of 
Business Park. The Future Land Use of Business Park is consistent with the proposed zoning 
of B-5 Highway Business District. 
 

2. Zoning District Requirements.  The proposed zoning for the property is B-5 Highway Business 
District in which any development within five hundred (500) feet of an existing or mapped right-
of-way of a freeway or expressway and within one thousand five hundred (1,500) feet of their 
existing or mapped centerline of interchange with any other road shall be deemed to be a 
conditional use. Any development within fifty (50) feet of any existing or mapped state trunk 
highway or county trunk highway and within one hundred fifty (150) feet of an existing or 
mapped centerline of intersection with any other road shall be deemed to be a conditional per 
Section 20-1339 (b) of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  Furthermore, truck terminals are allowed 
as a conditional use in the B-5 Highway Business District as a conditional use per Section 20-
1339 (a) (7) of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  

10. Rezoning. The petitioner is requesting to rezone the property from B-3 Commercial Service 
District and M-3 Heavy Industrial District to B-5 Highway Business District.   

A key provision of Wisconsin State Statute 66.1001 requires that certain land use 
actions/decisions be made which are “consistent” with the goals, objectives, and policies of an 
adopted comprehensive plan. The proposed Future Land Use Commercial is consistent with 
the proposed zoning of B-5 Highway Business District. 

3. Plan of Operation.  The proposed plan of operation includes: 

a. Uses and activities: Two (2) office/shop buildings (60’ x 82’ or approximately 4,920 s.f. 
each). 

b. Number of Employees: 4-6 office employees and 4 employees working in the shop.  

c. Standard hours of operation: Proposed business hours are 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday 
through Sunday. Semi-truck drivers shall have access to the secure parking lot 24 hours per 
day, 7 days per week.  The Plan Commission should determine whether the proposed hours 
of operation are appropriate.        

d. Outdoor Storage: No outdoor storage proposed. Semi-truck and trailer parking will be to the 
rear of the site in the designated parking area. The Plan Commission should determine 
whether the proposed semi-truck and trailer parking area is adequately screened.  

e. Landscaping: The property has several existing mature trees around the existing single-
family home at 405 27th Street and a large swath of mixed vegetation green space in the 
rear of the property. The petitioner’s proposal includes the removal of almost all this 
greenspace. The applicant has provided a landscape plan with minimal foundation 
plantings on the south sides of the two (2) existing Direct Auto Sales buildings and the 
eastern side of the eastern proposed new building. Proposed plantings include: two (2) 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 4 - 

Staff Review 

shade trees, one (1) ornamental tree, and thirty-four (34) shrubs. The Plan Commission 
should determine whether the proposed landscaping is appropriate.   

f. Parking: The Site Plan depicts 197 off-street parking stalls (including 30 standard parking 
stalls, one (1) ADA accessible stall, 97 semi-truck and trailer parking stalls, and 69 semi-
trailer parking stalls. The proposed surface for the semi-truck and trailer parking is gravel 
and the proposed surface for the standard parking stalls and ADA accessible stall is 
concrete pavement located on the west side of the proposed new buildings. 

The site plan should show snow storage areas, to ensure snow can safely be removed from 
paved areas without damaging landscaping or illegally placing snow in the public right-of-
way. 

g. Exterior Lighting: The proposed Lighting Plan (Sheet E-1) includes Nineteen (19) 23-foot 
pole mounted full-cutoff LED light fixtures throughout the proposed parking lots and 
eleven (11) wall-mount full-cutoff LED light fixtures on the proposed building. The color 
temperature of the proposed lighting fixtures is 4,000k. Foth recommends the color 
temperature of all exterior lighting fixtures be a “warm white” (3,000K or less).   

The Plan Commission should determine whether the proposed lighting is appropriate.  

h. Signage: Any business signage shall be required to obtain signage approval through the 
Village of Raymond sign application process.  

i. Chemicals/Hazardous Materials: No. 

j. Stormwater Management and Erosion Control: Drainage will be adequately captured and 
utilize newly proposed swales, storm sewer, and an Underground Detention System (MC-
7200 StormTech Chambers) as depicted on the Storm Sewer and Drainage Plan and 
described in the Stormwater Management Plan.  

k. Refuse Disposal: No details provided at this time.  

4. Architecture. The petitioner has provided architectural elevations and an artist’s rendering of 
the exterior of the proposed building. The Plan Commission should determine whether the 
proposed building materials are appropriate.   

5. Traffic, Circulation and Access.  The site will be accessible via a proposed new 24’ wide 
concrete driveway along 27th Street (West Frontage Road).  

6. Environmentally Sensitive Areas. Wetland and Waterway Consulting, LLC completed a 
wetland determination for the subject property on April 5, 2024. Fieldwork was completed by 
Kristi Sherfinski, an assured delineator qualified via the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources’ (WDNR’s) Wetland Delineation Assurance Program. The report concluded the 
presence of Wetland 1, a 0.20-acre drainageway with fresh wet meadow vegetation that 
crosses the subject area from southeast to northwest. It receives water from a large culvert at 
the southeast corner and from surface water runoff from the parking lots to the east and 
south. The feature ultimately drains to a wetland complex associated with the Root River to 
the west. 

The petitioner is proposing to impact all of Wetland 1 to expand the gravel parking lot for truck 
parking associated with his proposed transportation hub use.  

7. Caledonia Boundary Agreement. The Village of Caledonia has not yet reviewed this proposal.  



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 5 - 

Staff Review 

8. Conditional Use Permit 

Petitioner has included the following items as part of their submittal: 
• Plan Commission Review Application 
• Rezoning Description 
• Narrative Report 

• Existing Conditions Plan 
• Dimensioned Site Plan 
• Site Grading & Erosion Control Plan 
• Parking Lot Construction Plans 

• Storm Sewer & Drainage Plan  
• Stormwater Management Plan 

• Landscape Plan 

• Lighting Plan 
• Building Elevations and Structural Plans  
• Wetland Report  

 
Per 2017 Wisconsin Act 67, conditional use authority is now specifically addressed within the 
statutes.  In summary, conditional use decisions must be made based on substantial 
evidence – facts and information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, 
directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a 
conditional use permit and that reasonable persons would accept in support of a conclusion.  
The applicant must present substantial evidence demonstrating that the application and all 
requirements and conditions established by the Village relating to the conditional use are or 
shall be satisfied.  Any condition imposed by the Village through ordinance or by the Village 
Board must be reasonable and, to the extent practicable, measurable and may include 
conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer or renewal.  The Village’s decision to 
approve or deny the application must be supported by substantial evidence.  In addition, per 
Wis. Stats. 66.1001(2m)(b), a conditional use permit that may be issued by a political 
subdivision does not need to be consistent with the political subdivision’s comprehensive 
plan. 

 

ENGINEER COMMENTS:  
Comments from the Village Engineer regarding technical review of the Stormwater Management 
Plan and Site Plan are forthcoming and will be provided via separate correspondence when 
available.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 6 - 

Staff Review 

Depending on confirmation by the Village of Raymond Plan Commission of the above-described 
comments, the Village of Raymond Plan Commission may take the following actions: 

Rezoning  

The Village of Raymond Plan Commission recommends to the Raymond Board Approval of the 
rezoning request by Predrag Maric (Maric Investments, LLC) for the property located at 405 27th 
Street bearing Tax Parcel No. 168-04-21-01-005-000, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The subject property to be rezoned from B-3 Commercial Service District and M-3 Heavy 
Industrial District to B-5 Highway Business District shall be limited to Tax Parcel Number 
168-04-21-01-005-000.  

2. The Petitioner and/or Property Owner shall, on demand, reimburse the Village of Raymond 
for all costs and expenses of any type incurred by the Village in connection with the review 
and approval of this application, including, but not limited to, the cost of professional 
services incurred by the Village for the review and preparation of required documents, 
attendance at meetings or other related professional services as well as to enforce the 
conditions in this approval due to a violation of these conditions. Additionally, any unpaid 
bills owed to the Village of Raymond by the Subject Property Owner and/or Agent, for 
reimbursement of professional fees (as described above); or for personal property taxes; 
or for real property taxes; or for licenses, permit fees or any other fees or forfeitures owed 
to the Village of Raymond must be paid on demand and prior to issuance of any permits 
and shall be placed upon the tax roll for the Subject Property if not paid within thirty (30) 
days of the billing by the Village of Raymond, pursuant to Section 66.0627, Wisconsin 
Statutes. Such unpaid bills also constitute a breach of the requirements of this conditional 
approval that is subject to all remedies available to the Village of Raymond, including 
possible cause for termination of the conditional approval. 

 
Conditional Use Permit 

If the Village of Raymond Plan Commission wishes to Approve the Conditional Use Permit Request 
for Predrag Maric (Maric Investments, LLC) for the property located at 405 27th Street bearing Tax 
Parcel No. 168-04-21-01-005-000 then it is recommended the approval be subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. This conditional use approval is subject to the Petitioner complying at all times with 
the plans and documents presented to the Village of Raymond Plan Commission on 
May 22, 2024. 
 

2. Subject to a detailed stormwater management plan being reviewed and approved by 
the Village Engineer prior to the commencement of any land disturbing activities on 
the property.  
 

3. Operator must obtain a zoning permit and building permit prior to commencement of 
the construction of the new buildings.  
  

4. The hours of operation for Predrag Maric’s transportation companies (Maric 
Transportation, Inc., P.M. Truck World, LLC and Kalina Transportation, LLC) shall be 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 7 - 

Staff Review 

limited to 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Sunday, with semi-truck access to 
the secure parking lot 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.        

 
5. Outdoor storage of any materials or equipment is prohibited.  

 
6. Any Village of Caledonia review conditions shall be met.   

 
7. Any business signage shall be required to obtain signage approval through the Village 

of Raymond sign application process.  
 

8. The color temperature of all exterior lighting fixtures shall be 3,000K or less.  
 

9. Any landscaping, or lighting plans require separate staff review before implementation. 
 

10. The Conditional Use approval shall not be in full force and effect until such time as the 
Petitioner obtains the necessary approvals and satisfies all comments, conditions, and 
concerns of the: 

a. Village of Raymond Plan Commission and Board, Village Engineer, Village Planner 
and Village Attorney with respect to the submitted plans, documents, and 
specifications. 

b. Wisconsin Department of Transportation and/or Racine County Public Works and 
Development Services Department.  

c. Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WNDR), and U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE). 

11. This conditional use permit will expire nine (9) months from the date of the Village Board 
approval unless substantial work has commenced following said approval. If the Village 
determines that no substantial work has commenced, the project may no occur unless 
the Village Board grants a written extension. Written extension requests shall be 
submitted to the Village at least 30 days prior to permit/approval expiration.  
 

12. The property shall comply with all rules and regulations of the Village of Raymond and 
the Raymond Fire Department, including submission to routine inspections by the 
Village and Fire Department Staff. 

 
13. The Petitioner and/or Property Owner shall, on demand, reimburse the Village of 

Raymond for all costs and expenses of any type incurred by the Village in connection 
with the review and approval of this application, including, but not limited to, the cost 
of professional services incurred by the Village for the review and preparation of 
required documents, attendance at meetings or other related professional services as 
well as to enforce the conditions in this approval due to a violation of these conditions. 
Additionally, any unpaid bills owed to the Village of Raymond by the Subject Property 
Owner and/or Agent, for reimbursement of professional fees (as described above); or 
for personal property taxes; or for real property taxes; or for licenses, permit fees or 
any other fees or forfeitures owed to the Village of Raymond must be paid on demand 
and prior to issuance of any permits and shall be placed upon the tax roll for the 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 8 - 

Staff Review 

Subject Property if not paid within thirty (30) days of the billing by the Village of 
Raymond, pursuant to Section 66.0627, Wisconsin Statutes. Such unpaid bills also 
constitute a breach of the requirements of this conditional approval that is subject to 
all remedies available to the Village of Raymond, including possible cause for 
termination of the conditional approval.  

 
14. Other Conditions. 

a. No use is hereby authorized unless the use is conducted in a lawful, orderly, and 
peaceful manner. Nothing in this permit shall be deemed to authorize any public or 
private nuisance or to constitute a waiver, exemption or exception to any law, 
ordinance, order, or rule of either the municipal governing body, the County of 
Racine, the State of Wisconsin, the United States of America, or other duly 
constituted authority, except only to the extent that it authorizes the use of the 
subject property above described in any specific respects described herein. This 
permit shall not be deemed to constitute a building permit, nor shall this permit 
constitute any other license or permit required by Village ordinance or other law. 

b. This Conditional Use hereby authorized shall be confined to the subject property 
described, without extension or expansion other than as noted herein, and shall not 
vary from the purposes herein mentioned unless expressly authorized in writing by 
the Village of Raymond Plan Commission as being in compliance with all pertinent 
ordinances. 

c. Should the permitted Conditional Use be abandoned in any manner, or discontinued 
in use for twelve (12) months, or continued other than in strict conformity with the 
conditions of the original approval, or should the petitioner be delinquent in payment 
of any monies due and owing to municipality, or should a change in the character 
of the surrounding area or the use itself cause it to be no longer compatible with the 
surrounding area or for similar cause based upon consideration of public health, 
safety or welfare, the Conditional Use may be terminated by action of the Village of 
Raymond Plan Commission, pursuant to the enforcement provisions of this 
Conditional Use Permit. 

d. Any change, addition, modification, alteration and/or amendment of any aspect of 
this Conditional Use, including but not limited to an addition, modification, alteration, 
and/or amendment to the use, premises, structures, lands, or owners, other than as 
specifically authorized herein, shall require a new permit and all procedures in place 
at the time must be followed.  

e. Unless this Conditional Use Permit expressly states otherwise, plans that are 
specifically required by this Conditional Use Permit may be amended upon the prior 
approval of the Village of Raymond Board, upon receipt of a recommendation from 
the Plan Commission, if the Village of Raymond Plan Commission finds the plan 
amendment to be minor and consistent with the Conditional Use Permit. Any 
change in any plan that the Village of Raymond Plan Commission feels, in its sole 
discretion, to be substantial, shall require a new permit, and all procedures in place 
at the time must be followed. 



  

7044 S. Ballpark Drive, Suite 200 • Franklin, WI 53132 • (414) 336-7900 
- 9 - 

Staff Review 

f. Should any paragraph or phrase of this Conditional Use Permit be determined by a 
Court to be unlawful, illegal, or unconstitutional, said determination as to the 
particular phrase or paragraph shall not void the rest of the Conditional Use and the 
remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 

g. If any aspect of this Conditional Use Permit or any aspect of any plan contemplated 
and approved under this Conditional Use is in conflict with any other aspect of the 
Conditional Use or any aspect of any plan of the Conditional Use, the more restrictive 
provision shall be controlling as determined by the Village of Raymond Plan 
Commission. 

 

EXHIBIT: 

A. GIS Location Map  

B. Petitioner Application 



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MRM
JWR

8-31-2023
ALJ

11-27-2023

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 P
LA

N
S

FO
R

M
AR

IC
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
RA

YM
O

N
D,

 R
AC

IN
E 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

C-1

RACINE

GAS METER

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

UNDERGROUND VAULT

SECTION CORNER

STREET SIGN

MAIL BOX

HVAC UNIT

GUARD POST

SOIL BORING

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

LIGHT POLE

WATER MAIN REDUCER

SANITARY MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

NO VEHICULAR ACCESS

SEPTIC VENT

FENCE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

RAILROAD TRACKS

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATIONS

SILT FENCE

UTILITY POLE

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

TELEPHONE BOX

CULVERT 

ENDWALL

CATCH BASIN

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONTOURS

CONIFEROUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE REMOVAL

BUSH

STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY CLEAN OUT

HYDRANT

WATER MAIN VALVE

DECIDUOUS TREE REMOVAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

EDGE OF WOODS WATER SHUT OFF

WATER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATERMAIN

LEGEND
Existing Existing Proposed

FORCE MAIN

FIRE PROTECTION

UTILITY CROSSING

DITCH OR SWALE

BASE LINE BL
LONG CORD OF CURVE CHD
CURB AND GUTTER C&G
CATCH BASIN CB
CENTERLINE CL
EDGE OF PAVEMENT EOP
FINISHED FIRST FLOOR FFF
FINISHED GRADE FG
FLOW LINE FL
FLOODPLAIN FP
ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK OHWM
TOP OF BANK TOB
TOP OF CURB TOC
TOP OF WALK TOW

ABBREVIATIONS
INVERT ELEVATION IE
LENGTH OF CURVE ARC
MANHOLE MH
NORMAL WATER LEVEL NWL
POINT OF CURVATURE PC
POINT OF TANGENCY PT
TANGENCY OF CURVE TAN
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION PVI
RADIUS R
RIGHT OF WAY ROW
SANITARY SEWER SAN
STORM SEWER STM
TOP OF FOUNDATION TOF
WATER MAIN WM

Description Description

Plan Sheet Sheet No.
TITLE SHEET

EXISTING CONDITIONS

SITE PLAN

DEMOLITION PLAN

SITE GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

PAVEMENT GRADING PLAN

STORM SEWER & DRAINAGE PLAN

TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

ADS STORMTECT CHAMBER DETAILS

C-1

C-2

C-3

 C-4

C-5

C-6

C-6 & C-7

C-8 & C-9

C-10

C-11

MARIC INVESTMENTS, LLC.
PREDRAG MARIC
10416 WEST WHITNALL EDGE COURT #202
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
PHONE: 414-801-9735
EMAIL: predrag.maric@gmail.com

CLIENT

SHEET INDEX

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND
ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE
DRY WELL

AT&T
MIKE TOYEK
OFFICE: 262-636-0549
EMAIL: mt1734@att.com

TDS TELECOM
SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
OFFICE: 877-483-7142

SPECTRUM
ROBERT TUNUTA
UTILITY COORDINATOR
OFFICE: 414-277-4205
CELL: 414-758-5688
EMAIL: tunuta@charter.net

WE-ENERGIES
ALLIE MILLER
KENOSHA SOUTH
OFFICE: 262-552-3227
EMAIL: allie.miller@we-energies.com

NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY:
(800) 261-5325

ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY:
(800) 662-4797

PUBLIC UTILITY CONTACTS

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

VILLAGE OF RAYMOND
KARI MORGAN
VILLAGE PRESIDENT
OFFICE: 262-930-8953
EMAIL: kmorgan_raymond@yahoo.com

LINDA M. TERRY
VILLAGE CLERK
OFFICE: 262-835-4426
EMAIL: clerk@raymondwi.com

BARBARA HILL
VILLAGE TREASURER
OFFICE: 262-835-4426
EMAIL: treasurer@raymondwi.com

LEE GREIVELL
BUILDING INSPECTOR
OFFICE: 262-835-4819
EMAIL: lgreivell@gmail.com

JEFF MUENKEL
VILLAGE PLANNER
OFFICE: 414-386-7171
EMAIL: jeff.muenkel@foth.com

ORRIN SUMWALT
PROJECT PLANNER
OFFICE: 414-336-7914
EMAIL: orrinsumwalt@foth.com

DAN SNYDER
VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: 414-386-7171
EMAIL: dan.snyder@foth.com

GOVERNING AGENCY CONTACTS

PROJECT LOCATION

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
for

MARIC TRANSPORTATION
BUILDINGS & PARKING LOT

EXPANSION
for

MARIC INVESTMENTS, LLC.
405 27th Street, Village of Raymond, Racine County, Wisconsin

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA
PETER WAGNER
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
OFFICE: 262-835-6446
EMAIL: pwagner@caledonia-wi.gov

TONY BUNKELMAN, P.E.
UTILITY DIRECTOR
OFFICE: 262-835-6416
EMAIL: abunkleman@caledonia-wi.gov

RYAN SCHMIDT, P.E.
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
OFFICE: 262-835-6475
EMAIL: rschmidt@caledonia-wi.gov

JAMES KEEKER
SENIOR BUILDING INSPECTOR
OFFICE: 262-835-6406
EMAIL: jkeeker@caledonia-wi.gov

WISCONSIN D.O.T.
SOUTHEAST REGION
OFFICE: (414) 266-1167

KEVIN KOEHNKE, P.E.
PERMITS COORDINATOR
141 NW BARSTOW ST
WAUKESHA, WI 53187
OFFICE: (262) 548-5891

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
PETER C. WOOD, PE
WATER RESOURCE ENGINEER
OFFICE: 262-884-2360
EMAIL: peterwood@wisconsin.gov

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:23 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
X      X

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
\

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

80'

SCALE 1"=40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
N

DI
TI

O
N

S 
PL

AN
FO

R
M

AR
IC

 IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

RA
YM

O
N

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

GUARD RAIL

LEGEND

3/4" REBAR SET

1" IRON PIPE FOUND

3/4" REBAR FOUND

REBAR W/YELLOW DOT CAP FOUND

1 -1/4" IRON PIPE FOUND

REBAR W/YELLOW CAP FOUND

SIGN

CATCH BASIN

STORM SEWER

CLEAN OUT

ELECTRIC METER

COMMUNICATION BOX

GAS METER

MISC. MANHOLE

POWER POLE

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

GUY WIRE

FENCE

GUARD POST

OVERHEAD WIRES

WELL

MAILBOX

DOWNSPOUT

DRAIN TILE

NOTES
BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.
BASED UPON NAD 1983 / 2011.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NAVD 1988 (12).

EXISTING UTILITY DATA
CB 1
RIM 718.07
IE. 8" E 717.17
(ELBOW)

CB 2
RIM 718.85
IE. 6" W 716.25 (PVC)
IE. 6" S 716.60 (UD)
IE. 15" E 715.35 (RCP)

CB 3
RIM 719.06
IE. 6" N 715.66 (UD)
IE. 6" S 715.56 (UD)
IE. 15" E  714.31 (RCP)
IE. 15" W 714.26 (RCP)
IE. 18" N 714.16 (RCP)

SHEET

C-2

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

EXISTING GRAVEL PARKING LOT
AND FENCE ENCROACHMENT

JWR

ALJ
8-31-2023

11-27-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK 7" SPIKE NE FACE PP#58-16310  ELEV. 719.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:30 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

PROPOSED BUILDINGPROPOSED BUILDING

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

80'

SCALE 1"=40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
ED

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
FO

R
M

AR
IC

 IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

RA
YM

O
N

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SHEET

C-3

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

47
 T

R
AC

TO
R

/T
R

AI
LE

R
 S

TA
LL

S

PARKING INFORMATION
EXISTING

25' X 12' TRACTOR STALLS   20
75' X 12' TRACTOR/TRAILER STALLS   75
TOTAL STALLS   95

PROPOSED

55' x 12' TRAILER STALLS     69
75' X 12' TRACTOR/TRAILER STALLS   97
18' X 10' STANDARD CAR STALLS            30
18' X 10' HANDICAP STALL     1
TOTAL STALLS 197

PROPOSED SEMI TRACTOR
TRAILER PARKING LOT AREA

PROPOSED
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED VEHICULAR
ELECTRICAL HEATING PLUGIN
STATIONS

DOUBLE LIGHT POLE LOCATIONS

SINGLE LIGHT POLE LOCATIONS

BUILDING BOX LIGHT LOCATION

LEGEND

PARKING LOT
EXPANSION INFORMATION
EXISTING LOT AREA 138,737 s.f.
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL
LOT AREA 103,078 s.f.
TOTAL AREA 241,815 s.f.

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE AREA

JWR

ALJ
8-31-2023

PROPOSED
SECURITY GATE

11-27-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

50
 T

R
AI

LE
R

 S
TA

LL
S

26
 T

R
AC

TO
R

/T
R

AI
LE

R
 S

TA
LL

S

19
 T

R
AI

LE
R

 S
TA

LL
S

24
 T

R
AC

TO
R

/T
R

AI
LE

R
 S

TA
LL

S

10
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
TA

LL
S

7 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 S
TA

LL
S

14
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
TA

LL
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:1 TAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:1 TAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:35 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

80'

SCALE 1"=40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
 D

EM
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
FO

R
M

AR
IC

 IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

RA
YM

O
N

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SHEET

C-4
REMOVE EXISTING

ENDWALL APRON

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

CLEARING & GRUBBING  LIMITS

EXISTING STRUCTURE TO
BE REMOVED (BY OTHERS)

STRIP & SALVAGE TOPSOIL

PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED

GRAVEL TO BE SALVAGED AND RE-GRADED

FENCE TO BE REMOVED & SALVAGED

GUARD RAIL TO BE REMOVED & SALVAGED

CURB & GUTTER TO BE REMOVED

LEGEND

REMOVE EXISTING
CULVERT AND
ENDWALL APRONS

JWR

ALJ

REMOVE EXISTING
CULVERT AND
ENDWALL APRONS

POWER POLES TO
BE RE-LOCATED
BY OTHERS

SIGNS TO BE
RE-LOCATED PER
WDOT DIRECTION

REMOVE & REPLACE
CASTING FROM

VERTICAL FACE TO
DRIVEWAY APPROACH

8-31-2023

SEPTIC SYSTEM AND WELL TO
BE ABANDONED (BY OTHERS)

11-27-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:40 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE = 714.50

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE = 717.50

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
 S

IT
E 

GR
AD

IN
G 

&
 E

RO
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

FO
R

M
AR

IC
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
RA

YM
O

N
D,

 R
AC

IN
E 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SHEET

C-5

80'

SCALE 1"=40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

EROSION MAT -
CLASS 1, TYPE B

SILT FENCE

DISTURBED AREA
(346,935 S.F. = 7.965 AC)

STORM SEWER
INLET PROTECTION

MEDIUM RIP RAP

STONE TRACKING PAD

CENTERLINE OF YARD SWALE

LEGEND

480 LF SWALE @ 4.00%

TSS REDUCTION CALCULATION
TOTAL AREA TO ADS SYSTEM 341,118 SF (100.00%)

EXISTING REDEVELOPED 40% TSS AREA 237,295 SF (69.56%)

PROPOSED DEVELOPED 80% TSS AREA 103,823 SF (30.44%)

PRORATED TSS MINIMUM REQUIRED (0.6956X40) + (0.3044 X 80) = 52.18%

JWR

ALJ

78 LF SWALE @ 1.95%

77 LF SWALE @ 0.75%

8-31-2023

51 LF SWALE @ 3.55%198 LF SWALE @ 2.67%

46 LF SWALE @ 4.50% H.P.

11-28-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

SEDIMENT
TRAP (48'x22')

SEDIMENT
TRAP (72'x25')

GRADING NOTES
1. RUNOFF RECEIVING WATERS: UNNAMED

DRAINAGE SWALE TO THE ROOT RIVER.
2. TRUCKING ROUTE FOR ALL SPOIL MATERIALS

BROUGHT IN AND LEAVING THE SITE WILL UTILIZE
THE EXISTING 27TH STREET AND I-94 (WDOT
ROADS) AND COUNTY HIGHWAYS.

3. SITE EARTHWORK CALCULATIONS
FILL    13,369  CY
CUT   18,027  CY
NET     4,658   CY

SITE RUNOFF COEFFICIENTS
PRE-DEVELOPED 86

POST-DEVELOPED 95

PROPOSED SITE INFORMATION
363,151 s.f. TOTAL LOT AREA
 
  22,535 s.f. BUILDING AREAS

295,394 s.f. PAVEMENT AREAS

  45,222 s.f. GREEN SPACE AREA

   87.55% IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO

 +31.02% IMPERVIOUS SURFACE INCREASE

EXISTING SITE INFORMATION
363,151 s.f. TOTAL SITE AREA 

157,848 s.f. GREEN SPACE AREA

   56.53% IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:45 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
692



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE = 714.50

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE = 717.50

W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

PROPOSED BUILDINGPROPOSED BUILDING

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
PA

VE
M

EN
T 

GR
AD

IN
G 

PL
AN

FO
R

M
AR

IC
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
RA

YM
O

N
D,

 R
AC

IN
E 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SHEET

C-6

80'

SCALE 1" = 40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

100' - SWALE @ 3.00%

EXISTING SURFACE
SPOT GRADES

PROPOSED SURFACE
SPOT GRADES

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB GRADE
PROPOSED FLANGE OF CURB GRADE

125' - SWALE @ 2.31%

100' - SWALE @ 1.00%

89' - SWALE @ 1.00%

JWR

ALJ

SCALE 1" = 20'

51 LF SWALE @ 1.00%

51 LF SWALE @ 1.00%

8-31-2023

11-28-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

258 LF - 30" CURB & GUTTER

HEAVY-DUTY GRAVEL

HEAVY-DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HEAVY-DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

CENTERLINE OF PAVEMENT SWALE

PAVEMENT GRADING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:51 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.85



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MRM

2022.0236.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

M
AR

IC
 T

RA
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S 

&
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER
 &

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN
FO

R
M

AR
IC

 IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

, L
LC

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

RA
YM

O
N

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

SHEET

C-7

80'

SCALE 1"=40'

40' 0' 40' 80'

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL
INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE
TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS
AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

8" INSPECTION PORT
RIM 689.34

34 CELL ISOLATOR ROW
PER SPECIFICATIONS

588' - 6" TILE @ 0.00%

STM MH 13.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 701.25
IE. 36" (E) 694.0± (EX)
IE. 36" (W) 693.90 198' - 36" RCP @ 1.81% (EX)

STM MH 12.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 698.80

IE. 36" (N) 691.51
IE. 36" (E) 691.61

220' - 36" RCP @ 1.04%

STM MH 11.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 685.49

IE. 36" (NW) 681.14
IE. 36" (S) 681.24

400' - 36" RCP @ 2.57%

EW 10.0
IE. 36" (SE) 681.00

7' - 36" RCP @ 1.04%
WITH ENDWALL APRON

INLET 5.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 688.61
IE. 24" (S) 682.76
SUMP 680.76
88' - 24" STM @ 0.52%

STM MH 4.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 689.50
IE. 24" (N/S) 682.30
SUMP 680.30
10' - 24" RCP @ 0.52%

8" INSPECTION PORT
RIM 690.75

DETENTION SYSTEM
STORMTECH MC-7200 CHAMBERS
7 ROWS @ 29 CHAMBERS
SYSTEM INVERT 681.35 WITH 9" STONE BASE
6" DIA. DRAIN TILE OUTLET INVERT 681.35
24" DIA. MANIFOLD INLET/OUTLET INVERT 682.25

JCT 3.0
IE. 24" (N/S) 682.25

JCT 6.0
IE. 24" (N/S) 682.25

EXISTING STORM SEWER

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

STORM SEWER LEGEND

INLET 8.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 694.40
IE. 24" (N) 682.79
SUMP 680.79
99' - 24" STM @ 0.52%

EW 1.0
IE. 24" (E) 680.96

28' - 24" RCP @ 1.04%
WITH ENDWALL APRON

DETENTION
SYSTEM OUTLET
STRUCTURE 2.0

RIM 689.79
IE. 24" (S) 681.35
IE.   6" (S) 681.35

12" ORIFICE (S) 681.35
4.0' WEIR 686.70

IE. 24" (W) 681.25
5' - 24" STM @ 0.00%

STM MH 7.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 691.40
IE. 24" (N/S) 682.28
IE. 12" (E/W) 685.25
SUMP 680.28
5' - 24" RCP @ 0.52%

INLET 9.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 688.50

SYSTEM INVERT 681.35

JWR

ALJ

JCT 14.0
IE. 24" (E) 682.25

STM MH 15.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 693.09
IE. 24" (W) 682.29
IE. 18" (E) 684.50
8' - 24" RCP @ 0.52%

INLET 16.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 708.50

IE. 18" (W) 703.76
IE. 12" (N) 704.51
IE. 12" (E) 704.51

390' - 18" RCP @ 4.94%

INLET 16.3 (48" DIA.)
RIM 709.52

IE. 12" (S) 705.79
123' - 12" RCP @ 1.04%

EW 18.0
IE. 12" (SE) 713.84
16' - 12" RCP @ 6.27%

RD 16.1.1
IE. 6" (S) 707.11

18' - 6" STM @ 1.04%

JCT 16.1
IE. 12" (E/W) 706.67

IE. 6" (N) 706.92
104' - 12" RCP @ 2.08%

RD 16.2.1
IE. 6" (S) 707.91

17' - 6" STM @ 1.04%

JCT 16.2
IE. 12" (E/W) 707.48

IE. 6" (N) 707.73
78' - 12" RCP @ 1.04%

RD 17.1.1
IE. 6" (S) 709.00
17' - 6" STM @ 1.04%

JCT 17.1
IE. 12" (E/W) 708.57
IE. 6" (N) 708.82
13' - 12" RCP @ 6.27%

RD 17.2.1
IE. 6" (S) 713.27

18' - 6" STM @ 1.04%

JCT 17.2
IE. 12" (E/W)712.83
IE. 6" (N) 713.08
68' - 12" RCP @ 6.27%

8-31-2023

INLET 17.0 (48" DIA.)
RIM 713.18

IE. 12" (W) 707.64
IE. 12" (E) 707.75

16' - 12" RCP @ 1.04%

REPLACE CATCH BASIN
WITH NEENAH INLET
FRAME AND GRATE R-3205.
ADJUST RIM TO 718.85

11-28-2023

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

-2
0
2
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:14:55 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thursday, November 30, 2023



W
ES

T 
FR

O
N

TA
GE

 R
O

AD
 - 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

PROPOSED BUILDINGPROPOSED BUILDING

L-1.0BUILDING LANDSCAPE PLAN

12-1-23
20230607

40
5 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

FO
R

M
AR

IC
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
RA

YM
ON

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

UN
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N



PARKING AREA LANDSCAPING L-2.0

12-1-23
20230607

40
5 

27
th

 S
TR

EE
T

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

FO
R

M
AR

IC
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
, L

LC
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
RA

YM
ON

D,
 R

AC
IN

E 
CO

UN
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N



Maric Investments Inc
Adress: 405 27 TH Street,Caledonia,WI

Front View 

1:75

Zamena za:

Datum

Obradio

Stand.

Odobrio

St. i. DatumIzmena Ime

Kol.Poz. JM Naziv

Izv. pod.

Oznaka:

Naziv:

Standard - Izabrane karakteristike

Masa

List:

L

Razmera

Primedba



Maric Investments Inc
Adress: 405 27 TH Street,Caledonia,WI

Left View 

1:75

Zamena za:

Datum

Obradio

Stand.

Odobrio

St. i. DatumIzmena Ime

Kol.Poz. JM Naziv

Izv. pod.

Oznaka:

Naziv:

Standard - Izabrane karakteristike

Masa

List:

L

Razmera

Primedba



Maric Investments Inc
Adress: 405 27 TH Street,Caledonia,WI

Right View 

1:75

Zamena za:

Datum

Obradio

Stand.

Odobrio

St. i. DatumIzmena Ime

Kol.Poz. JM Naziv

Izv. pod.

Oznaka:

Naziv:

Standard - Izabrane karakteristike

Masa

List:

L

Razmera

Primedba



Maric Investments Inc
Adress: 405 27 TH Street,Caledonia,WI

View from the back

1:75

Zamena za:

Datum

Obradio

Stand.

Odobrio

St. i. DatumIzmena Ime

Kol.Poz. JM Naziv

Izv. pod.

Oznaka:

Naziv:

Standard - Izabrane karakteristike

Masa

List:

L

Razmera

Primedba



Narrative Report 

For 

Maric Transportation Buildings and Parking Lot Expansion 

  

The owner Predrag Maric is requesting a conditional use permit to construct two 60’x82’ 

(4,920 sf ) buildings and expand the existing parking lot for his transportation companies 

(Maric Transportation, Inc., PM Truck World, LLC. and Kalina Transportation, LLC.)  

The existing front building is leased to Direct Auto Sale (Car Dealership) and they currently 

have a 5-year lease. Direct Auto Sales will also lease the Easterly proposed building for 

additional space. 

The existing rear building is currently leased to VG The Car Co., LLC (Auto Body Repair) and 

they are also under a 5-year lease. 

The proposed Westerly building will be occupied by the owner for his transportation 

companies for offices and equipment repair. It is projected that the office/shop hours will be 

from 6 am to 6 pm Monday through Sunday.  It is proposed that there will be 4-6 office 

employees and 4 employees working in the shop. The employee and visitor parking is to the 

west of the proposed westerly building.  

The secured (gated), video monitored and lighted parking lot area would be in operation with 

semi-trucks coming and going 24 hours 7 days a week. Most of the semi-trucks coming into 

the site will be the owner’s and the owner operators in his companies.    

It is proposed to reconstruct the existing driveway between the buildings to better access to 

all the buildings and parking lot areas. 

The proposed buildings will be constructed with insulated aluminum panels and steel 

rooöng.  

  

  

 



1

Al Jeske

From: Kohout, Ben <Ben.Kohout@foth.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 10:56 AM
To: Al Jeske
Cc: Muenkel, Jeff
Subject: RE: [External] RE: Maric Investments Raymond
Attachments: RPT-2024-0522 Maric REZ, CUP and SPPOO Staff Review (PC).pdf

Hi Al, 
 
So, the plan commission recommended approval with planner’s recommendations (attached), PLUS additional 
landscaping along the North and South property lines for aesthetics.  Also, all vehicles on the property should be 
road-worthy and licensed with no storage of junk vehicles, and a conditional use grant will be drafted hopefully 
this week or next with everything typed out (as soon as I can allocate some time for this). 
 
Hope this helps for now.  If not, let me know. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Ben Kohout 
Project Planner, AICP 
 

 
 
Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC 
Ballpark Commons OƯice Building 
7044 South Ballpark Drive, Ste 200 
Franklin, WI  53132 
OƯice: (414) 336-7900 
Direct: (414) 336-7908 
Cell: (319) 939-8853 
foth.com 
 

From: Al Jeske <ajeske@nmbsc.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 10:42 AM 
To: Kohout, Ben <Ben.Kohout@foth.com> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: Maric Investments Raymond 
 
Good Morning Ben 
 
Is it possible to get a pdf copy of the conditions of approval from the meeting. 
 
I would like to submit to Caledonia this week and want to include the conditions in the submittal package.  
 
 
AL JESKE 
Engineering Technician  



 

 
Meeting Date:   June 24, 2024     

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT 
 

Item No. 6e  

Proposal: Cooperative Boundary Agreement Review  

Description: Review a request to approve a sign plan for the construction and utilization of a ±172 
square-foot wall sign located on an existing commercial building located at 195 27th Street 
in the Village of Raymond.  
 

Applicant(s): August Hoppe 

Address(es): 195 27th Street 

Suggested 
Motion: 

That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board that the sign plan for 
construction and utilization of a ±172 square-foot wall building located at 195 27th Street in 
the Village of Raymond be approved for the following reasons: 
 

1. The Village of Raymond granted approval of the proposed wall sign in accordance 
with plans received on May 22, 2024. 

2. The proposed sign meets the intent of the Village of Caledonia development 
standards in accordance with the Cooperative Boundary Agreement between the 
Villages of Caledonia and Raymond. 

3. Any modification of the sign will require review by the Village of Raymond and the 
Village of Caledonia. 
 

Owner(s): Christensen Revocable Trust 

Tax Key(s): 168-04-21-01-004-000 

Lot Size(s): 4.056 acres  

Current Zoning 
District(s):  M-2, General Industrial District  

  

Overlay District(s): N/A 
  

  

Wetlands:  Yes      No Floodplain:  Yes      No 

Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Industrial and Business Park  

 
 
 
 



Caledonia Plan Commission Report Meeting Date: June 24, 2024 
 Item No.: 6e 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Background: The applicant is requesting approval of a sign plan proposing for the construction and 
installation of a ±172 square-foot wall sign located on an existing commercial building at 195 27th Street 
in the Village of Raymond. The site is currently used by Hoppe Tree Service and Urban Wood Lab. Details 
of this business can be found at https://www.hoppetreeservice.com. The applicant is looking to update 
their wall sign from an unlit, flat wall sign to an internally lit channel letter design wall sign. The applicant 
has received approval from the Village of Raymond as the proposed sign complies with their sign 
ordinance. 
 
The proposed 172-square-foot sign exceeds the 32-square-foot maximum size limit for wall signs. The 
Village of Caledonia has a process where an applicant can request modifications to the sign ordinance if 
approved through a sign plan review process as it relates to size, number, and location. In this case, the 
applicant is asking to build one 172-square-foot wall sign.  
 
The proposed wall sign in relation to the size of the building appears to be appropriately scaled. Due to 
the building’s proximity to the freeway and being installed on the building, the proposed sign will not create 
clutter or confusion along the freeway corridor, should not be a distraction to drivers, and provide better 
readability from the freeway. Staff recommends approval of the proposed sign plan. If the applicant wishes 
to add or install additional signs, the applicant will need to amend their sign plan to reflect those changes 
In your packet is an illustration of the proposed sign. Note that the “wood lab” sign is not part of this 
approval process and will not be installed on the building.  
 
The intent of the Boundary Agreement is to ensure that development occurring along the Interstate has a 
consistent and high-quality appearance. The following is a review of the proposed development as to 
relates to the design standards included in Exhibit K of the Boundary Agreement. It is the Plan 
Commission’s discretion to determine whether the proposed development meets the standards and 
should be considered a “spectacular” development. 
 
If the Plan Commission is comfortable with the proposed sign plan, staff has drafted a suggested motion 
to approve the sign plan for the building located at 195 27th Street. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Peter Wagner, AICP 
Development Director 

 
 
 

 
 

https://www.hoppetreeservice.com/




195 27th Street   Caledonia, WI 5310

21700 DORAL ROAD 
WAUKESHA WI 53186
262.432.1330
www.innovative-signs.com



www.Innovative-Signs.com

Materials & Speci�cs

Date

11/22/2023

EST 12880

Order #

Customer

Hoppe Tree Service - 
Illuminated Channel Letter Signs

Shawn H.

Hoppe Tree Service
White LED Il;uminated Channel Letter
Set 68”x 258”
Raceway mounted
4” Letter Depth

Wood Lab Illuminated Cabinet
96” circle

Colors

Designer

Brad H.

Project Manager

Approval
Signature:

Your Store for
Local Wood

Pantone 534c
Full Color Digital Print

White

Your Store for
Local Wood

Day View

Night View



258”

68”

258.5”

28.25”

52”

www.Innovative-Signs.com

Materials & Speci�cs

Date

11/22/2023

EST 12880

Order #

Customer

Hoppe Tree Service - 
Illuminated Channel Letter Signs

Shawn H.

Hoppe Tree Service
Channel Letter Set 68”x 258”
Raceway mounted
4” Letter Depth

Wood Lab Illuminated Cabinet
96” circle

Colors

Designer

Brad H.

Project Manager

Approval
Signature:

Pantone 534c
Full Color Digital Print

White

Overall Square Footage = 172 sq ft


	Agenda
	Minutes
	5A and 5B
	5C
	5D
	6A
	6B
	6C
	6D
	6E



